
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, August 4th, 2015.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member




Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 

Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member

Peter Daly, Board Member 

Jim Creighton, Board Member

ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney
 



Michael Preziosi, Deputy Director, DOTS



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA:
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do have one change to the agenda tonight.  The applicant for PB 1-15 has asked to have his materials adjourned to the next meeting, to the September meeting.  If anyone is here and it is a public hearing…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Loretta, they can’t hear you in the back.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, the applicant has asked, for PB 1-15 Montauk Student Transport, has asked to have his hearing adjourned to the next meeting, to the September meeting.  If anyone is here for that meeting, and I suspect that there would be, you can stay and speak if you wish but the applicant will not be here.  Okay?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, I had several conversations with the residents and that’s what I said; that the applicant won’t be here to respond to comments but it is an adjourned advertised public hearing so if anyone wishes to make comments, feel free to.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that is the one change that we have on the agenda. 

*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF JUNE 30, 2015:
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can I have a motion to adopt the minutes of June 30th?

So moved, seconded.
Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I have a correction, plus the date, the top of the copy should be June 30th instead of June 2nd.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other corrections to those minutes?  Can I have a motion now to accept the corrected date of the minutes?

So moved with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*
COMMENTS:

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated before we move into the correspondence section which is the first area of our agenda generally, I’d like to take a minute to thank my Vice Chairman for stepping in and sitting in for me for the last couple of months.  I think you did an excellent job obviously and I want to say that it’s really, really very important that if you have to have time off that you get a great backup and I think I did, not only with the Vice Chairperson but with the board as well.  So, I want to thank you all for your support and hopefully we will be right back on track again tonight.  Thank you so much.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated thank you Madame Chair and welcome back.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:

PB 17-06    a.
An Undated Letter, received by the Planning Division on July 21, 2015 from Rory Eblen and a drawing prepared by Nelson & Pope Engineers & Surveyors dated July 2015, requesting Planning Board approval for a proposed solid-oxide fuel cell (clean energy generator) installation at Home Depot.

Ms. Amy Shanahan stated good evening Planning Board, Chairperson Taylor, can you hear me okay?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Ms. Amy Shanahan stated I’m with the Bloom Energy, we are the applicant and developer for the proposed fuel cell project located at Home Depot.  We currently have an application under review with the town.  What we would like to do is talk to you a little bit about who we are and what we’re proposing.  I will keep this short because I appreciate that you have a very full agenda.  We have a few slides I’m going to go through.  But, I wanted to just introduce Bloom.  Bloom is a manufacturer of solid oxide fuel cells.  We’re based out of Sunnyville, California.  If you’re not familiar with what a fuel cell is: it’s one of the most sustainable and efficient alternative energy sources on the market today.  It’s a distributed generation technology.  It produces electricity at the site where it’s installed.  Similar to solar that produces energy right there and used at the source, produced and used at the source, fuel cells do the same thing except in this case, the fuel cells convert fuel, in this case natural gas: the same natural gas that you use in your homes for cooking, directly into electricity without the use of combustion.  It’s a very efficient, clean process.  This process produces energy 24/7, 365, round the clock.  So, it will provide approximately 80% of the baseload power to the Home Depot building.  This system is extremely safe.  We monitor the fuel cells 24/7, 365.  There are virtually no emissions from this system whatsoever.  It has a very low water use compared to the grid and a very, very small footprint.  The fuel cell will produce 200 kw of power to the Home Depot building.  We’d like to show you a few photos of some completed installations that we have if you could progress the slides please, a little further.  You can stop right there.  This is an installation we have it in the Nokia building.  It’s located adjacent to the employee lunch area so you can see that there are no emissions or noise that would disturb anyone from eating lunch and sitting there right next to the fuel cells.  The fuel cells are UL listed and comply with all NFPA requirements.  In addition, the emissions comply with a California Air Resources Board standard for distributed generation.  Next slide, you can keep going: to date, Bloom has installed over 160 megawatts of fuel cells throughout the U.S. and Japan.  This is an example of or examples of some of our customers.  Currently, we have a large portfolio for Home Depot that we’re deploying throughout the east coast and the west coast and this proposed project is part of that large portfolio.  The nearest installation we’ve installed to the proposed location is in Peekskill which was for Stop and Shop earlier this year.  In addition, we’ve installed 7 projects in the state of New York and including a project for Morgan Stanley, also located in Westchester County in Purchase.  You can go to the next slide please.  Again, that’s the Nokia installation.  Here’s an installation at ebay in California and another: AT&T is a large customer for Bloom, Macy’s, Adobe in San Francisco.  This is an installation at a New York City Hall in downtown Manhattan.  This system has been up and running for at least 3 years I believe.  This is an installation in Connecticut.  You can see the system is very robust and can withstand extreme temperatures, stays up and running no problem.  

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked excuse me, when you say you monitor it, is that like remote monitoring that you guys do?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded yes, we monitor the fuel cells remotely from our facility in Sunnyville.  Our backup is in India.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and one other thing: do they lease these from you or do you actually sell them to these companies?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded the specific agreement we have with Home Depot is a power purchase agreement so it’s sort of like a lease agreement where…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated they’re essentially purchasing the power…

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded yes, exactly.  They purchase the power.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated so if something goes wrong with your monitoring, you’ll notice it and you guys are responsible for fixing it.

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded yes, we have a maintenance agreement with Home Depot and we conduct regular maintenance.  We go to the fuel cells quarterly and maintenance them as needed.  In addition to that, as I mentioned, somebody’s monitoring them 24/7, 365.  Next slide please.  It might be a little tough to see back there but this is just a little map showing the locations of completed projects that we have in New York State.  Throughout our northeast region we have a total of 78 sites that are either installed or are – we have a contract with the customer to install in the near future.  Of those 78, there are 41 in New York, 30 in Connecticut, 19 in New Jersey, 3 in Delaware and then others in Maryland, Pennsylvania and Virginia: a total of approximately 60 megawatts throughout the northeast region.  The proposed project, again at Home Depot, is currently under review by the town.  We have received comments from the Engineering Department that we will work with staff to address.  If there are any questions from the Planning Board, I’d be happy to address them for you.
Mr. Robert Foley stated on the previous slide, is that Peekskill top left?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded yes.
Mr. Robert Foley asked what’s the name of the location?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded it says A-Hold, that’s the company that owns Stop and Shop but it’s just the Stop and Shop in Peekskill.

Mr. Peter Daly asked what happens with the excess energy that’s produced?  Is it put into the grid or…

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded no, it’s not put back into the grid.  Actually we size the fuel cells to provide what’s called ‘baseload power’ to the building and so that’s not the full power need of the building 24/7, it’s just their baseload power that they need during the night and the day.  We really size the system to the needs of the business.

Mr. Peter Daly asked so you’re not powering them entirely?  They’re still getting…

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded no we’re not.  We provide the majority of the power to the building though.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked what’s the life of a unit like this?  Are the components made – do they have to be the anode, the cathode, do they have to be changed out periodically?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded periodically the fuel cells are replaced and it depends on the use and the environmental conditions that they’re under but in general, we replace the fuel cells every 3 to 5 years and so what we do is take them back to our manufacturing plant located in Delaware and we refurbish them and then send them back out to a different site.

Mr. Robert Foley asked in reference to the memo from our Engineering tonight, there’s no exhaust steam or anything?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded the system emits a small amount of waste heat from the top of the fuel cells.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is that steam emission or…

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded yes, it’s just a little bit of waste heat.  So, the fuel cells run at a high temperature and that’s what allows them to be efficient.  Our fuel cells essentially re-circulate the heat so they reuse that in the electro-chemical reaction that produces electricity and the fuel cells are completely insulated to capture that heat but there’s a very small amount of waste heat that is not needed to facilitate that electro-chemical reaction that’s vented from the top of the fuel cells.  It’s similar to that of a hair dryer.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked similar to a?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded a hair dryer.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the whole unit or for each separate cell?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded for each module.  There’s 6 modules that make up the fuel cell and each one vents out heat from the top.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and did you say this is going to supply 80%?

Ms. Amy Shanahan responded approximately.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any other questions at this moment?  We did briefly talk about this at our work session last time but there were some issues or questions that staff needed to get clarified and I think we got a copy today of the questions that Mike Preziosi submitted to your company.  We haven’t really had a chance to look that over but we will.  We’re going to refer this back.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you very much.

Ms. Amy Shanahan stated thank you very much for your time.  I appreciate it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so what will happen is you’ll deal with the Engineering Department to try to answer their questions.  The deadline for the September 1st meeting is approximately August 19th so any additional information you need get to our office by August 19th and we’ll get to the Planning Board and you’ll be back on the September 1st agenda.

PB 12-94    b.
Letter dated July 20, 2015 from Joe Marazino requesting Planning Board approval to park a maximum of 10 U-Haul vehicles behind the Cortlandt Town Center shopping center near the cinema.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are you Mr. Marazino?
Mr. Joe Marazino responded yes I am.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you want to explain.

Mr. Joe Marazino stated I am the proprietor of the U-Haul and the current renter of the facility 3114 East Main Street.  I’m looking to park 10 trucks and 5 cars at the Acadia, across the street from my location, temporarily.  As you know, Acadia is going to be developing the property that I’m at right now so I’m looking to move across the street for a short period of time until I find myself a different location.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think you’re aware of it, in your packets tonight you got the brief explanation from Mr. Marazino.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes we did.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so they currently have a number of tree service trucks parked there and they’ll moving those somewhere?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded that I don’t know.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other questions?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess my issue is, and I appreciate you coming here and seeking approval.  There are trucks there currently where they did not seek approval to park them taking up probably 4 of the parking lanes behind the cinema, behind the movie theater.  I think we should send Code Enforcement out and cite them for parking, not to hold you up by any means, that’s not my intent and find out what their intent is to do with those trucks.  Are they going to move them to another part of Home Depot, or I’m sorry, the Cortlandt Town Center and park them elsewhere?  Let’s get something from them.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did staff have any other concerns at this point?  I don’t think we do.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one of the biggest concerns was the hopeful temporary nature and that is reflected in the memo that I believe the arrangement you have with Acadia, as Mr. Eickoff explained to me who’s the manager of the mall, that it’s not even really a lease: it is a license agreement with a term of 6 months.

Mr. Joe Marazino stated that’s correct.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated what I would suggest is if you’re inclined to permit it that you time limit it for 6 months then it will be up to Mr. Marazino if he’s not out to try to convince you to give both the Cortlandt Town Center and you to give him more time.

Mr. Joe Marazino stated that’s correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I actually brought that up too at the work session.  I really wanted to be clear to everyone, that this is a temporary situation.

Mr. Joe Marazino stated temporary, that’s correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess we’re going to refer it back to you guys, right?  We can grant the approval and then…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded maybe you can conditionally grant the approval how successful we are dealing with Acadia regarding the removal of the trucks that are there now because that is the space where he wants to go in and if there are problems with that or if that can’t be worked out we would bring this issue back to you at the September meeting.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked aren’t they also trying to do something across the street I believe?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded which is I believe the reason why he’s…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no, but I mean if you’re having trouble dealing with Acadia, I think they have something else in front of us.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’m not anticipating that the problem will continue.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we grant this request subject to a time limit of 6 months upon which time the applicant will come back, if necessary, request an extension.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so you have this conditional…

Mr. Joe Marazino responded 6 months, yes ma’am, thank you.
PB 19-81    c.
Letter dated July 17, 2015 from Cronin Engineering and a plan entitled “Site Development Plan for St. Patrick’s Church” also prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. dated July 17, 2015 requesting Planning Board approval for a parking facility for church patrons located on 11th Street.  

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated good evening, Keith Staudohar with Cronin Engineering.  We’re here representing the applicant: St. Patrick’s Church.  This project involves the construction of temporary parking lots for the St. Patrick’s Church located on the corner of Highland Avenue and 11th Street.  Currently, their parking facility is located in an easement that is owned by Entergy where Algonquin is going to be pulling and running their pipeline and will totally disturb, disrupt the existing parking lot.  Algonquin is under a mandate, if you will, from their Environmental Impact Statement to construct a temporary facility for the church and while they are constructing a pipeline under the Hudson River.  We have prepared a plan that provides parking that has been asked for by the applicant.  What we’ve done is we’ve taken an existing disturbed area on the west side of Highland Avenue and provided about 20 parking spaces in there and then we have about 70 parking spaces up along 11th Street for a total of about 90 parking spaces.  The number of spaces was a request from the church.  They have increased their parishioners.  The number of parishioners that they’re seeing every weekend.  This is what we had submitted for that.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so the 90 is just the result of what they requested from you?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded yes, the weekly following has grown since the…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked what spaces is that replacing?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded I’m not sure exactly how many there are there now.  There's nothing delineated there now.  It’s just a big asphalt area and some lawn.  So, I’m not sure if they park – I’m not sure.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked I mean, is it a lot more?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded I would probably say it’s over double.  Chris if you just show where the existing parking -- directly across the main building, that whole area there within that pull-back zone.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated the existing parking is where they temporarily soil stock piles are shown where Chris is moving the cursor.  They roughly service about 30 to 40 vehicles on a Sunday for parishioners.  One of the issues is that it is a grass and gravel area that’s going to be taken up because of the construction of the Algonquin pipeline in the next few months.  As part of the finding statement they are required to assist the church in constructing a temporary parking facility and the key thing to consider and to remember with this application is that this is a temporary parking facility.  After Algonquin installs the pipeline, they will be required to restore the existing parking lot to its pre-existing condition.  So, we’ll work with the church as far as scaling back the number of parking spaces shown and becoming a little bit more of a reduced scale temporary parking area to help mitigate some impacts to that small shallow depression that’s that blue circle and some of the impacts to some trees along that area.  Again, the key thing is to key on is this is a temporary parking lot for the next year or so.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated it’s temporary but you’re doubling the number of parking spaces and then you’re going to go back to half the number of parking spaces?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded no, we’ll work with the church to kind of accommodate them as we move forward.  The town is in the process of acquiring the Con Edison site so right now we don’t own it so it’s a little bit of a tricky situation.  We’re working with Con Edison, the church and our staff to come up with a plan for permanent parking on the site once all the paperwork is finalized. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’m not sure that that was clear, maybe it was at the work session, is ultimately this temporary parking will be on town-owned land.  We’re purchasing all that land so the town may not necessarily want that parking to stay on our land because we have designs for parking development and things there so when we say it is temporary, we really want it to be temporary.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated for me the question is why have we expanded it so much in the beginning, to start with?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded the church asked SPECTRA Algonquin pretty much for a max build-out, you always ask for more.  We’re now going to now work with them to reduce and come up with a more reasonable parking layout, like I said, to help mitigate some of the impacts of the local area over the trees and shallow wetlands disturbance and to reduce it and bring it back to a closer use.  

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I think as we discussed at the work session, we don’t really have a good sense of what the place with the temporary parking is going, what that area is like, what types of trees are there, any wetlands, we’re operating blindly so we’re going to need some information about that; we need, certainly a tree study and if there are any wetlands or anything we need to know about that.

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded absolutely.  There’s not too much wetlands that little blue area over there is a shallow depression is considered a wetland just because of the area.  It doesn’t meet town code as far as regulatory capabilities of the town but we will work with the church to come up with a tree survey, tree impact and to assess a more reasonable size for the parking lot to scale it down.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated because since it’s temporary I’d hate to disturb an area at this point.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated absolutely and we’ll work with them to reduce the size and make it more compatible to the current conditions as far as parking count, that’s a fair alternative. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated the lot west of Highland, that’s the second temporary lot? Top left?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded yes that’s the second temporary lot; that is for, from our understanding discussions with the church and the church’s contracted for parishioners that have accessibility issues, it’s a little bit closer location to their main entrance.  That was an alternative to add a couple of spots in that location as well.
Mr. Keith Staudohar stated that location is already disturbed now.

Mr. Robert Foley stated from a long range standpoint, if I’m not mistaken, isn’t this church merging in the archdiocese with St.Christopher’s and would this church be used with – no it isn’t?  Mr. Robert Foley stated so it’s not going to be cut back usage at St. Pat’s…

Mr. [   ] stated honorable Chair and distinguished members and my fellow citizens, St. Patrick’s Church and St. Christopher’s Church, it is announced in the news of the archdiocese that are merging but that would stay as it is for every worship and for every celebration of the sacrament as two entities.  But administration would be one.  We have more people coming in, from my experience I can say we have more than 200 individuals coming in on Saturday evening masses alone.  Most of my parishioners now at St. Patrick’s are elderly and they need closer parking facilities, especially in winter time: they cannot walk that far.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other questions, concerns?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair, I’ll move that we refer this back to staff to continue discussions with the applicant on the number of parking spaces and the need for a tree survey.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you Mr. Staudohar.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated thank you.



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED):
PB 1-11      a.
Public Hearing: Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement dated March 17, 2015 of Croton Realty & Development Inc. for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Wetland, Tree Removal and Steep Slope Permits for a 26 lot major subdivision (25 building lots and 1 conservation parcel) of a 35.9 acre parcel of property located on the east side of Croton Avenue, approximately 400 feet north of Furnace Dock Road, as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision Plan for Hanover Estates” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin III, P.E. latest revision dated March 17, 2015.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated good evening.  Keith Staudohar with Cronin Engineering and we are part of the team that is representing the Croton Realty and Development Inc.  We are currently in an adjourned public hearing for the FEIS and at the last meeting, the July meeting which was conducted on June 30th, we presented a tweaked version of alternative D2 which we presented at the prior meeting which is up on the screen now.  We’ve named it alternative D3 and Madame Chair, I realize you’ve missed a couple of these meetings so what this alternative does; it’s a take-off on alternative D which was part of the scoping document for the original DEIS and that is a 27-lot cluster development without a sports field and utilizing sanitary sewer for the sewage facilities.  Alternative D did not have – what we’ve done with alt. D2 slash, now D3 is we’ve provided, essentially, more green space in the northeast corner.  We provided about 1 ¼ acres of conservation parcel land to mitigate the concerns raised in the Bartlett tree report.  Also, we have eliminated any access off the boulevard near the entrance so that boulevard is now complete until you get to the ‘Y’ so there’s no access off the boulevard section of the roadway and it appears that at the last work session that the consensus of the board was that this layout is providing the mitigations as needed and as discussed in prior public hearings.  We’re hopeful tonight that we can close the public hearing and move towards a findings and approval at the September meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked for the board: are there any questions, concerns about this alternative?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked you gave us a rundown of the comparison of only alternatives and the impacts, the alternative impacts but you didn’t include D2 in there. 

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded D2 is very similar to D3.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked can you remind us again what it’s like?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded one second.  Alternative D2: well let’s just go back to alternative D.  Alternative D, I don’t know if you’ve got it up there Chris, alternative D from the scoping document provided open space, green parcels on the southeast corner and the western flank of the property, especially where the sports field was supposed to go and provided only a 50-foot no-disturbance buffer along the northern and eastern property lines.  From that, we decided, let’s take a closer look at alternative D and come up with something that may prove – let’s go D2, what it did was it eliminated 2 lots on the east side of the property, 3 lots excuse me, from 1 through 6: we took 3 lots and then moved them to the former location of the proposed sports field.  When we presented that, I forget which meeting, it was a couple of meetings ago, there was concern that one of the lots; the first lot on the left, was gaining access to the boulevard through an open in the median and that it caused some concern for the board so we went back to the drawing board and tweaked this a little further.  So, what we have on the northeast corner now instead of 6 lots in alternative D and not 3 lots as part of alternative D2, we now have 4 lots for D3.  So, we put 4 lots in D3.  We rearranged the lot lines.  We actually increased our buffer to the wetland system on the southeast green piece.  We now have 4 lots on the east side; a 1 ¼ acre parcel on the northeast corner open space forever and now we have 2 lots down where the former sports field was supposed to go and there is no access onto the boulevard. Hope I didn’t go too fast.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated okay, that’s good.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are we all clear on this particular alternative and if so…

Mr. Robert Foley asked I just have a question on the memo from DOT.  All mitigation that was discussed at the previous meetings and the process would come into play, and there would be minimal impact to 202.  So all of those mitigations, as far as traffic…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded our outside traffic consultant, AKRF, developed a spreadsheet of all the required improvements along with cost estimates and those include preemption devices for the emergency vehicles, some changes to the signals, that will all, if it gets that far, it will all be put into the Resolution of Approval and specified.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated the applicant is going to provide those improvements as AKRF recommended.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any other questions?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded it’s the same issue that I always have and I just don’t believe the math when it comes to what the revenue being generated by the project will truly materialize and you show a net gain to the town because I still disagree with your average selling price of $850,000 a house, especially in a cluster subdivision.  So, I would suggest some day, I probably won’t be here but down the road, somebody should go back and actually see how things materialize versus what was presented way back when…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’ll still be here.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’ll be here, I won’t be here.  You’ll be here.  Every one of these things that comes before us makes the numbers look great, makes them seem like there’s a gain to the town but I’m looking what Valeria’s selling for an it’s nowhere near 850 so I don’t know why…

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded well, they’ve got a completely different product over there and they are selling at fairly high numbers for attached housing.  We’ve looked into that and we know some people over there, so we’re confident that…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but their numbers are substantially below yours.

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded I don’t know – well, again, it’s a completely different product.  You’re not including all the dues that people have to pay and all the other things that are involved in that.  We’re confident…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’re not going to settle it here, I understand that.  I just want to go on record in saying that always are skeptical about the numbers that get presented here as to the expected selling price and what the expected return to the town is in terms of revenue.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated you had asked during the public hearing process what the breakeven point is and we estimated that at about $700,000 so I think we’re certainly well above 700 here and we’re certainly targeting the 800-850 market.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anything else?  No more from the board.  This is a public hearing so if there’s anyone here in the audience who has a comment to make, please come up, identify yourself and your residence, where you live and have at it.
Mr. Shawn Grady stated hi.  Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to speak.  My name is Shawn Grady.  I’m a resident of 16 Apple Hill Drive.  In case I missed it; I wasn’t able to hear everything.  When will you vote: whether it’s going to be D1, D2 or D3?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked when?

Mr. Shawn Grady responded yes.  Do we know?  Did I miss that?  I’m sorry.
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded right about now.

Mr. Shawn Grady stated right about now.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes.

Mr. Shawn Grady stated that’s exciting.  I’ll sit back and eagerly wait the vote.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is that the only comment from the audience?  I think essentially what we want to do, probably, is get a sense of the board here for this particular alternative and move this along so that we can close the public hearing.  Can I get a sense of all of you who are, say, in agreement with this latest alternative D3?

Mr. Robert Foley responded I think it’s the best alternative we have got at this point. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any objections to it?

Members of the board responded no.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so you can say that we have agreed that you will proceed with the D3 alternative and if there are no further comments from the audience, no additional concerns from the board, we’ll go ahead and close the public hearing.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we close the public hearing.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated thank you very much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated finally.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record, obviously for the next meeting on September 1st, there’ll be a Resolution of Approval and a Finding Statement.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we direct staff to produce a Finding Statement for the September meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated thank you very much.
PB 14-13    b.
Public Hearing: Application of Acadia Cortlandt Crossing, LLC  for Site Development Plan approval and for  Wetland, Tree Removal and Steep Slope Permits for a 130,000 sq. ft. shopping center for property located at 3144 East Main Street (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a 21 page set of drawings entitled “Cortlandt Crossing”  prepared by Divney, Tung & Schwalbe, LLP latest revision dated May 18, 2015 with the Cover Sheet, Site Location Map, Zoning Compliance Table, SP-1.1 Site Geometry Plan, SP-4.1 through 4.2 Conceptual Landscape Plan and SP-4.3 through 4.5 Landscape Details latest revision dated July 22, 2015.

Mr. stated thank you Madame Chairperson, members of the board thank you very much.  Chris pulled that up.  We last presented to you, at the public hearing on June 2nd, we received a number of comments from the board.  We subsequently had discussions with town staff and town’s consultant: AKRF.  We submitted a revision package to your board and really the purpose of this is to kind of go through that revision package.  We understand that the board made some comments at its work session last week regarding architecture and some views from Cortlandt Boulevard.  I just want to let you know that we’ll be working on those so that we can get those to you at a subsequent meeting.  We did hear the board.  I’ll take you through the submission changes that we made.  We had shown at the last hearing some sections of the Cortlandt Boulevard streetscape.  The sections essentially remain the same except we’ve added a wood guard bumper in two locations along Cortlandt Boulevard between the parking lot and the sidewalk and that’s just as an additional safety precaution for cars that pull, since they’ll be facing out towards the sidewalk: it’s just an extra safety precaution where there’s a steeper slope.  This is just another section of that same guardrail.  There’s also been a number of questions about the retaining walls that we’ll have across the site.  If you can see in the upper left hand corner, there are retaining walls at the two site entries: the eastern most site entry and the main site entry along with the western retaining wall.  This image presents a couple alternatives that will be investigating.  In all cases of the retaining walls will be low to moderate height.  They will feature a modular stone system generally in earth tone colors.  The final material will be subject to availability and to match and to complement the architecture.  The retaining walls along the western boundary of the site have been a question.  There was a question – actually Chris, you can go to the next one, a question about the area that’s closest to Cortlandt Boulevard.  There was concerns whether or not this would be rip wrap or some other material.  To clarify: this area will actually be a stabilized slope.  It’ll feature a geo-textile material to make sure that the slope stays in place and then it will feature ground cover in the form of shrubs, woody ground cover and some trees along the parking lot so the view from Cortlandt Boulevard will not be a rip wrap, it will actually be a vegetative slope.  As we move further back and the slope starts to increase, it’ll be a combination of a few different measures: one will be an exposed rock face near this parking lot with column near trees above will be a stabilized slope that leads up to the fencing at the common property line with the school.  You can go on Chris.  Further back where the condition start to exceed a little further, there will be similar rock face cut and then above that will be a low retaining wall.  It will be a similar system in coloring as the retaining walls I showed in the examples that would also be at the main entries.  Furthest back, it will be a similar condition, it’s just a matter of the combination of how much will be exposed rock face and how much would be retaining wall and some of that will be based on field conditions, but essentially it will be a rock and not a concrete wall or anything like that.  Around to the other side of the site, the stream, which is something that we presented to you in the past, we’ve gone and done some further enhancements to the proposed stream: this includes a path and a pedestrian bridge which would cross the stream.  Between the stream and the pond there had been more of a pipe condition previously shown.  At this point, we are showing a – it’s like a spillway.  It will end up creating a waterfall type of feature between the pond, it is at a lower elevation so that water would actually sort of cascade out of the pond and into that spillway area and below the pedestrian bridge.  The pedestrian bridge continues to lead to sort of an amenity area which could include things like a gazebo and picnic tables is what we represented in the EIS.  That also leads to the landscaped area further to the north on the planted berm.  You can go to the next one Chris.  In discussions with staff, it became apparent of how many trees we were fitting on that berm in an effort to reinforce the area and what it didn’t take into consideration was the stream amenity and the amenities on the other side of what’s now the pedestrian bridge and where we were leading potential residents that might want to go there and workers and visitors to the site, it kind of just led them to sort of a dark forest and it didn’t really play well with the stream, the pond and the berm that we had going.  So, our landscape architects and our firm went through and developed a three-part plan: essentially, on the western portion of the berm would be a meadow.  It would be planted with some perennials, some ornamental and perennial grasses.  In between that, it would be a transition area which would have some deciduous trees, shrubs, more of the meadow seeding and then on the eastern portion of the berm, which is the most critical for our buffering, it would continue to have the forested buffer but with a little bit larger trees than we had previously shown.  These would be starting up to between 2 to 3 inch caliber shade trees to start.  We’ve also, which we had shown last time I believe, pulled back the limit of disturbance so that we maintain some of the existing vegetation along the northern and eastern portion of the berm so that some of that existing growth remains throughout the project and afterward.  What this does not change – Chris could you go to the next slide?
Mr. Robert Foley asked what would the size of the meadow be and would it be passive?

Mr. responded it would be a passive – we’re not planning to put any kind of sports amenities or anything in that.  It would a passive use.  The whole northern area is proposed to be dedicated to the town or put into some kind of open space in perpetuity.  Whether or not that has a path that goes through it, that’s still to be determined but essentially it would be for passive recreation. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked size roughly?

Mr. responded the size – I’ll have to get a measurement of that.  It’s about a third of what we had for the berm.  It’s essentially from the crest of the berm onto the eastern slope leading back down towards the pond.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked people could walk across the meadow?

Mr. responded they could walk across the meadow.  Yes they could.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and this plan has been sent to our consultants.  We just talked about it today.  Their landscape architect is preparing some additional comments on your last submission, this submission and you’ll get those shortly.

Mr. stated what’s important is that we maintained – the purpose was in making this next iteration of the landscape plan and that buffer area, and that berm was to maintain the buffer that we had shown between our development and the Lucs Lane neighborhood so the berm remains the same height, it still provides alone 6 to 8 foot difference above the Lucs Lane at the end of Lucs Lane.  It continues to provide the same number of trees and buffer.  So, the meadow is really between the pond and the top of the berm and does not impact the eastern portion of the berm which was very important that we keep that as a buffer.  If there’s any questions, I’d be happy to try to answer them.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t have any questions about what you’re presenting, except that there was that profile a couple of slides earlier.  I was wondering: that’s the one along the front from the sidewalk…

Mr. responded those ones are along the western side of the school.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how high is that slope?  If you’re standing on the sidewalk, really, how high is the top that you see the slope?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked you’re talking about this?  What it looks like from Route 6 into the site?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, how high is that?

Mr. responded it varies.  In the center of the site, Cortlandt Boulevard is close to level with the parking lot but as it extends to the east and west to the site it does drop off from where the parking lot will be.  As you can see, we’ve kind of put a person in there to show at the – this is the extreme end as we get close to the eastern section, the furthest east.  There is about a 5-foot difference between Cortlandt Boulevard and the parking lot.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked will you see cars?  It looks as if you might not.

Mr. responded right. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor based on what I’m looking at but I’m not sure.

Mr. responded right, and we can work on that when the architectural renderings that I believe you were asking for at the work session.  But, the purpose of the deciduous shrubs along there, we had added those, I think the last time we came to the Planning Board, the purpose was to screen the cars and then obviously this section is a snapshot.  If you see the little inset above, there are also ornamental and deciduous trees along that way as well.  This happens to be a snapshot where there isn’t a tree in that view but there would also be trees along the way.  But, along the entire continuous there would be this low deciduous shrub and/or evergreen mix that would essentially…
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the shrubs will go along the entire length and there would be trees…

Mr. responded right, so the trees add the visual interest, the height but the shrubs are really there to block the front of cars but obviously not stop people from being able to see into the site, to see if there’s activity.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked we talked about this at the work session, do you have the capability of doing 3D rendering of that?

Mr. responded the architects, they do.  They design it in 3D so we should be able to pick some representative images from Cortlandt Boulevard and then discuss if there’s more images that you’d would like to see or some kind of a fly around.  We can discuss that with the architects.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that would be a very good idea.

Mr. Robert Foley stated from a safety standpoint in relation to the parking and the sidewalk on the lower elevation, I know you have the bushes and everything but there’d be more than adequate curb to prevent any…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there’s also a guiderail.

Mr. Robert Foley stated oh the guiderail too, that’s right.

Mr. responded right, so there’s considerable distance between the parking lot and the sidewalk but where there is a little bit of a sloped condition, we would have that guiderail in wood.  From the street you might not see it because it’s behind the shrubs but it would be there just to prevent cars from extending too far over.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anything else from staff?  Any other comments?  This is a public hearing and, of course, you all are invited to come up and make any comments on this particular application if you desire to do so.  Is there anyone in the audience who’s here to comment on this particular application at this time?  Come forward: your name and where you reside.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated good evening everyone.  Madame, board members, I guess you guys already know who I am and how opposed I am to all of this.  My name is Dominic Esposito.  I live on 6 Lucs Lane.  I’m right there.  I don’t know if you can kind of put your pointer on there.  You know exactly where I am.  No that’s 5, that’s 6.  We’ve been going back and forth with going into the residential area and turning it into commercial and that’s really what I have an issue with.  There’s different types of Variances and Acadia needs to prove that they have a hardship or whatever, to get that Variance.  I haven’t seen any of that.  What hardship do they really have to go into the residential area?  They do have 400 foot, I believe, or commercial area.  They need to stay within that.  They knew what they purchased.  I mentioned this before at prior meetings.  They purchased a land that was part commercial and the majority residential, now they want to change that.  There’s no hardship here that’s been proven that they need to go into the commercial – to the residential portion of it.  As a matter of fact, there’s land right next to them that they can actually extend out that way.  There’s, I believe it’s 6,500 – I believe that they can put on that.  There’s no reason for them to go back into it, change the stream, a pond, meadow.  You’re disturbing my quality of life there.  You’re going to have people walking through there, making noise and so on and so forth.  Now, there’s been several plans going back and forth with the structure of what you want to do on Route 6 with putting a light there and the reason why they want to put a light there so they can increase the traffic flow.  Is that really what we want to do, increase traffic flow so that we can put a light there?  Then, last time we discussed also that, there’s an existing problem on Route 6 already.  That’s not being addressed.  We’re compounding the problem here.  There’s definitely land between where they are, where Acadia’s planning to build and the school.  Why don’t they extend out that way?  There’s different types of Variances, I’ve done some research.  There’s different types of Variances that you can acquire.  There’s an Area Variance criteria and then there’s also a Use Variance criteria and under the Area Variance criteria “whether the benefit can be achieved by other means feasible to the applicant” and yes it can be.  They can go to that area that’s next to – between the proposed site and the school.  There’s absolutely no reason why they’re showing a hardship that they need to go into the residential portion of it. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we don’t have any control over where they want to expand in that sense.  Have you spoken with the applicant?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded you know what, I’ve been speaking and speaking and all I hear is the town is moving on with it.  There was a gentleman that was here before that he had approval to park his vehicles in the back of Home Depot, in the interim while the building takes place.  That tells me that what we’re saying here, my quality of life doesn’t mean anything because we’re already saying: hey, you know what, I think it was 6 months, yes for 6 months park your car over there while we do this no matter what anybody says, no matter what goes on, on Route 6, no matter what we do with the traffic light, no matter what happens.  There’s all sorts of accidents that occur coming down that hill, yes there was a traffic study done but the traffic study was done up on Lexington and way down, nothing in that immediate area.  A few weeks ago there was an accident with injuries and we already know; the town knows that there’s an existing problem on 6.  There’s been – gentlemen have come up here and explained many things: where’s the runoff going to go, there’s one of the drainage pipes I believe that goes behind Home Depot that’s damaged.  What are we doing about that?  All I hear is we’re moving on with the project.  We’re going to put a meadow.  We’re going to put a bridge.  We’re going to put a gazebo but what are we doing about the quality of life for the people around there?  We’re not doing anything.  They haven’t proven anything of why they’re going into the residential portion of this property.  There’s absolutely no reason why they need to go into that.  They don’t have a loss of wage – they have an income.  They’re not losing any type of income.  They already have an income.  Fix it.  You can fix up that area.  You can make it as nice as you want.  Don’t go into the residential portion of it.  That’s our area, we’re the residents, now you’re coming into our area and disturbing our area so that we can look at the back of a building.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think what the Planning Board Chairwoman was implying is that there are two parallel courses going on here.  The Town Board is what you call the lead agent and they are in charge of the overall project.  They are contemplating a rezoning to rezone a portion of that property in the back that you’re concerned about…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated that’s what I’m talking about.

Mr. Chris Kehoe continued from residential to commercial.  This board does not have a role in the re-zoning.  That is up to the Town Board whether they’re choosing to do that.  They haven’t decided whether they’re going to do that or not.  There’s a Final Environmental Impact Statement that is going to be delivered to the Town Board sometime shortly.  Parallel to that, this board is solely interested in what they call the site plan: how the building looks, landscaping, information like that.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I understand that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe continued they haven’t approved this yet and they can’t approve this until the Town Board completes their review but they’re running parallel.  

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated but to me, if you don’t put the cart before the horse – we’re deciding on what to do here when we don’t even know if it’s going to happen.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s a risk the applicant is running because they are currently in front of the Town Board about whether the Town Board is going to rezone the property or not…
Mr. Dominic Esposito stated but what that does is that puts a burden on us because I have to keep coming here…

Mr. John Klarl stated there’s a third track involved.  You discussed something before I’ll get back to, Chris was talking about the Town Board, and talked about the Planning Board’s role involving the Zoning Board.  You described for us in detail before the elements of an Area Variance and the elements of a Use Variance and none of which are sought here.  They’re asking to proceed by way of a petition to rezone.  The Variance that you described: the elements of the Area Variance and the elements of the Use Variance you described them in a nice way, in a comprehensive way, they don’t come into play here because this is about a rezoning not about seeking a Variance.  If he sought a Variance he would be before the Zoning Board.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I understand that.  That should have already been discussed and that should have already been – a decision should have been made on that prior to moving ahead this way, because if a Variance wasn’t given to go into, for whatever reason, to go into the residential portion of it, we’re just wasting time or – I have to keep coming here and keep talking about what it’s doing to the neighborhood and the residents in that area when we don’t even have a decision made yet.  We’re kind of building something here that we don’t even know if it’s going to -- pick an airplane, we’re building it and we don’t even know if it’s going to fly.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked have you been before the Town Board.


Mr. Dominic Esposito responded I’ve been at every meeting.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated okay, good.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated and I will keep coming to every meeting because I think this is non-sense.  You’re actually destroying the area and now you want to raise Route 6?  We’re already flat, why do you want to build a mountain there for?  How is that going to be appeasable to me when I go into my area and say: I have to drive by a wall?  That doesn’t make sense to me and what is it going to do to my property?  It’s going to decrease my value.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated you’ve pinpointed the problem for you and in this situation, but anything we do with the site is moot if the town decides that they can’t build it there.  So, they’re really the ones who are going to make that decision.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated so what the Planning Board can do is say: no we don’t like that meadow, we don’t like that stream, we don’t like the back of that, bring it in forward.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s exactly what they’re thinking about.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but in the event that this does go forward, we will have sort of chucked our responsibility.  Our part in this has been explained to you a few times, is to look at the site plan.  If we were just to say we don’t want this, we don’t want that, you can do this, you can’t do that – if they’re going to go forward we can’t…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I understand that but as the Planning Board you can look at that and you have to take into consideration the area, the residents, what it’s going to do.  You have to take all that into consideration.  Am I correct?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded yes.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated so while taking all that into consideration, hey look why are we raising all of Route 6 up for?  That doesn’t make any sense.  What about those residents that are there?  Why are we building a meadow so that we can bring more people in there at night that can go run around, drink beer and cause problems for those people on Route 6?  What about, it’s a residential area, we need to take that into consideration.  Do we really need to have a stream going all the way around and all that stuff so all that’s going to do is bring whatever – these are the things the Planning Board can think of.  This is all part of the planning right?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded right, and we haven’t made a decision yet.  

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated that’s why I’m here and I’m here stressing.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated and we appreciate that.  But I hear your problem and your main problem that you’ve been raising is the zoning issue and again that’s something that the Town Board’s going to ultimately decide not us.  So, we may not be that much of a help for you but everything else you’ve described about the site is something that matters to us and we are ultimately going to decide and we hear you.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated so to answer your question, and I don’t mean any disrespect by no means but all I’ve been hearing is: well you know, how is that little bridge going to look?  What are we going to do in the meadow?  Are people going to be able to run around and throw Frisbees?  That’s all I’ve been hearing.  I haven’t heard anything about: what about those people that live on Lucs Lane?  I have not heard one thing about that.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we’ve addressed the Lucs Lane…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated we have but it should be brought up in every meeting and I don’t mean any disrespect by all means to the board but I live there. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the planting of the trees and the size of the trees does reflect what you have brought up in the past and the neighbors.  It may not be completely what you want but again, this is just a process and we also haven’t decided.  We hear what you’re saying tonight as well.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Esposito, I’m wondering, and I’m trying to recollect because I know you’ve spoken to us before and we do appreciate it and we’re listening.  On this idea of moving to the other area, have you specifically – I know you said stay out of the residential area, don’t bring it too close but what you’re saying tonight, had that been specifically stated before by you or your neighbors?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated he’s talking about a piece of property located to the west which is not owned by the applicant.  It could be purchased by the applicant but it is a privately-owned parcel that was subject of a Planning Board approval 20 years ago.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the one on 6, yes I know the property, but you specifically…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated but they need to make the mall area, 80,000 square feet or whatever it is, don’t go back.  Move to the side.

Mr. Robert Foley asked when you’ve addressed the Town Board on this like Mr. Rothfeder has asked and previously Mr. Bianchi, and Ms. Taylor you’ve said exactly what you’re telling us now to the Town Board.  

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded yes, I got the same answer.  Well, we’ll look into it.  We’ll talk about it.  We’ll discuss it, so on and so forth.  But, I just see everything just moving forward.  We even got a gentleman that came in today and say: “oh can I park my car back there while they do this?”  “Absolutely, go right ahead, but for 6 months.”  What does that tell me?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing is, as I mentioned, the Final Environmental Impact Statement which is one of these type books is going to be coming into the town shortly.  That book has to answer your questions.  You raised them at the Town Board public hearing.  The requirement is they answer them.  You may not like the answers but that will be your question is: “I don’t hear an answer.”  Well, that book they have to answer your questions.  When that comes in, you can read that answer and whether you’re happy with it or not you’ll have another opportunity to comment.

Mr. Robert Foley stated make sure you readdress it if you’re not pleased.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I will address it every time.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and you should readdress it to the Town Board level because that’s where the subject of use and Variances come into play, not here where we’re just presented with a plan when you think about it.  I think they’re more involved in what you’re talking about.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I just have a question: in order to go into the residential portion of it do you have to prove some sort of Variance correct?

Mr. John Klarl responded it’s not about a Variance.  It’s about a zoning petition.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded they have to request approval from the Town Board to change the zoning and the Town Board weighs the pros and cons of that and as part of their process would approve or deny that request.  It’s not the same as a Variance.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated okay.  To conclude, we’re destroying the neighborhood. It’s simple.  It’s not very difficult.  We already have an ongoing issue with the traffic flow on Route 6 and everyone knows this.  It’s not anything new.  It’s been going on for years.  We know that there’s a drainage issue.  We know that the drainage pipes that goes behind, and it was proven by a gentleman here a few meetings back, that they’re damaged.  How could we possibly move forward?  What was actually said by Acadia that “we’re going to put a traffic light there.”  That’s why we’re going to do things here so we can increase the traffic flow.  In a residential area?  Do we want to increase the traffic flow?  Why not work on trying to fix the problem?  There’s people getting hurt.  So, what are we going to do?  We’re going to introduce more traffic to the area?  It just doesn’t make sense.  Sometimes you have to bring things to the simplest form and say: does it really make sense?  Do we really want to bring more traffic here?  We also have another issue with Geis Auto Mall.  They built across the street so now across from them they’re building again.  The gas station, I think it’s Shell or – Shell has an issue so now they have to be rerouted going through Home Depot, and now you’re increasing more traffic in a parking lot.  Does that make sense?  At what point do we say: you know what, we have to think about the area and the safety of the people.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re very welcome.  We do hear you.  We do.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I really hope you do and I know you do.  It just doesn’t make sense.  Even putting a traffic light there, we already have traffic coming down that hill.  Traffic light is just going to rear end.  Everyone is just going to rear end each other and the traffic is going to go straight back up, past the firehouse and all the way up Route 6.  It’s there and this is all hypothetical stuff.  How can you prove to me that nothing’s going to happen here?  How can you prove that you’re not going to have, in heavy weather, heavy rain, that that stream is not going to overflow and 6 Lucs Lane is going to get flooded?  How can you prove it?  It’s all hypothetical.  Then what happens after that?  Then you want to raise it 6 to 8 feet?  I could jump 8 feet.  You know what I’m saying?  And I can look over that berm.  In order for you to really isolate Route 6 from everybody else, that berm has to be 30 feet and then what, then we’re staring at a wall.  Is that what we want?

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words then sir, before us tonight the newest plans on the berm, it doesn’t please you?

Mr. Dominic Esposito responded 8 feet?  I can look over – you can look over it from Lucs Lane, 8 feet, so if you go any higher than that, I’m staring at a wall.  Are you going to make it a wall or look like rocks and all this other stuff?  It’s still a wall.  A wall is a wall.  The only way to fix that is to go – they can purchase the property next to them and they can extend it out that way instead of going into the residential portion of it and basically ruining that neighborhood.  I mean you can see the proximity to Lucs Lane and I speak on behalf of other residents too on Lucs Lane.  We’re the ones that are mostly impacted.  You might hear from other residents from other areas, half a mile, a mile away, to me: you’re not there.  It’s a different story when you’re actually staring at it as opposed to driving by it.  Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re welcome.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated hi, good evening board, Madame Chairperson.  My name is Elizabeth Peterson.  I live in Cortlandt Manor.  I have a question about this because it came to my mind because we’re facing in my neighborhood a similar, not completely the same but as far as what you’re saying that you’re responsible for as far as making decisions it occurred to me – and I’m new to this process so please forgive me, that’s why I have a question.  What is currently the area in green where this meadow is proposed?  Is it currently forest?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the front portion where the buildings are proposed is currently a variety of small scale commercial buildings: an abandoned gas station, a bar, a stereo installation shop, that’s disturbed.  As you move deeper into the property it does get wooded and then 400 feet from Route 6 is zoned commercial and then the remainder of it is zoned residential.  It’s called a split-zone parcel. 

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked my question at any of these public hearings that I’m listening to is does this Planning Board take into consideration native lands being destroyed and taken down, being replaced by artificial, not artificial but plants that are not native to this area as far as grass, beautiful perennials versus native species that are going to help this environment and the insects and the animals that already live there versus something that might be pleasing to a human but that has nothing to do with the health of the land that we live in?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded specifically, as I mentioned just today, we met with our outside consultants who have a landscape architecture component to it; they’re helping us review this.  The memo is not finalized but they specifically reference that the applicant is using native species.  I’m not the expert in that but that is something that the town does take into account.  The other thing to keep in mind is that on this map all of this area back here will remain wooded and will be donated to the town.  So, there is some tree removal in the front but this wetland complex and all of the land in the back will be permanently preserved.  That’s part of the balancing act that the Planning Board and the town has to do on all of these projects. 

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated right, I’m quite against all of that bargaining.  So the area in green; is that similar wetland and forest that would be destroyed?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the yellow area – the dark area is the actual wetland.  The yellow area is the 100-foot wetland buffer.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated I’m talking about where they are planning the meadow.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s outside of the wetland and the wetland buffer.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think she’s referring to the meadow itself.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right, which is outside of wetland and the wetland buffer.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson responded right, but it currently is just native land that’s contingent to the area that would be left alone.  So, what is the purpose of that meadow?  Is it just because people want something to look nice next to the buildings?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded in previous proposals for this had it all wooded and our landscape consultants did not think that totally planting that many trees there was healthy and they recommended the change.  This is the first time the Planning Board or staff has seen the meadow concept.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated okay.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what’s currently there?  Do you know what’s currently there where the meadow is being proposed?

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated that’s what I’m asking mostly.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I assume it’s wooded.

Mr. Peter Daly stated it’s wooded.  There’s some residences, older buildings, things like that, some asphalt driveways, things like that.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson asked but it’s not really forest?

Mr. Peter Daly responded I mean the entire site itself, if you really want to go back in its history is already disturbed, right up the hill.  It was farm land not many years ago.

Ms. Elizabeth Peterson stated that’s mostly what I want to find out because again, thank you, this process is new to me.  I wanted to see how much you’d take into consideration: native lands and destroying them for commercial purposes when they can be left alone.  Thank you very much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re welcome.  Did you have any other comments or concerns?  I know you asked us to adjourn this to October, is that still necessary?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we would suggest if you think your 3D renderings are going to be ready we were going to adjourn the case until October but would you prefer that it be adjourned to September?  Will you be ready for that meeting?  The deadline to get that information would be about August 19th. I guess we can continue the site plan public hearing at your September meeting.

Mr. Robert Foley asked September 1 right?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded September 1, yes.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn this until the September 1st meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re adjourned until September, and you will be able to get that 3 dimensional drawing to us before that September meeting?

Mr. responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated because we’ll need time to look it over.
PB 1-15      c.
Public Hearing: Application of Montauk Student Transport, LLC, for the property of Worth Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and for Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a school bus depot with a total of 187 parking spaces, a maximum of 92 parking spaces for full and van size buses and 95 parking spaces for passenger vehicles, a fuel storage and dispensing facility and the use of the existing 4,200 sq. ft. garage/office facility and storage barn building for a business office, employee lounge and garage for light service and maintenance located on a 4.98 acre parcel of property at 301 6th Street as shown on a 9 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Montauk Student Transport, LLC” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin, III, P.E. latest revision dated May 15, 2015.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I said earlier this evening, the applicant had asked that this hearing be adjourned to September but I did also say that if you were here and you wish to speak on this matter, that you can.  I’m opening it up for your particular comments.  If you have a comment to make, please come up to the microphone, state your name and give us your residence.
Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated thank you Ms. Chairman Taylor.  My name’s Rosemarie Muscolo.  I live at 205 Broadway in Verplanck.  I was here at the last meeting and the meeting before that and sent a letter in April regarding our concerns on this issue.  I did hear the other day that they were not going to be here and that there was a pending traffic study which the residents had requested so we appreciate the fact that that’s been required.  Basically, I’m here to ask just a few questions about the process of that.  I understand that there’s funds have to be put in escrow for that study and that it’s proposed to be done some time in September.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded as far as we know.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo asked my question is: if the applicant does not put funds in escrow in time to do a study in September, then what is the recourse of the board or the residents because, obviously, we all know they started operating a year ago and now a school year is starting again in September and they’re going to continue operating until a decision’s made on whether this is an appropriate use of this property and the impact on the community in particular because of the increased traffic, which based on raw numbers, we estimate it to be 30% over the 2012 study done by the County of Westchester.  Those documents were presented at the last meeting.  What happens if they don’t put money in escrow for the traffic study?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded well, there’s no traffic study obviously and so the board and the staff would have to make a decision about what to do in that case.  But I mean, why are we getting ahead and saying “what if they don’t put the money in?”

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo responded my concern stems from some of the comments and some of the documentation I provided at the last meeting about my concern on the 8 or 10 different entities that Montauk Student Transport has had over the years for different business purposes and I am aware by doing a public record search there’s been various complaints they’ve had against them including the filing on June 9th of 2015 of a $36,000 IRS judgment for unpaid employment insurance taxes and I also recently found another judgment against them from last summer filed October 20th, 2014 for another $20,000 plus dollars from an entity: Global Land and Material in Peekskill.  Just from those two items that got judgments against them over $50,000 and so whether they have the funds to complete the study as the town is requiring is a concern to me and then, of course, if they’re solvent enough to be responsible to continue to operate in a safe manner in Verplanck and also if a problem rose, if they’re just going to turn their operations to over yet a new LLC, because that’s what they do.  I’m sure the Planning Board does not go back and search records but I did because I wanted to know who these people were who moved in and started operating and drive past my house with their buses every day.  That’s one concern and question and so I know we are at a disadvantage as residents here because they’ve been permitted to continue operation while they’re applying for the approval of the board here but it’s to their benefit to delay as long as possible especially if it goes against them, but it’s against us if you allow them to continue operating without any ramifications for delaying the process. That’s my question.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the expectation is they will fund the study.  If they don’t fund the study, and John correct me if I’m wrong, there is language that says they have to diligently pursue the application because of a concern exactly like yours.  So, the judgment from the Town Department, whether they were diligently pursuing the application.

Mr. John Klarl stated there’s a given fund that’s required to be funded and if you haven’t fund it we don’t move forward with the application until the money is tendered.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated exactly, so my question is how long will you allow them to leave that item open?  Two months, six months, a year?

Mr. John Klarl responded not that long.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated that’s what I’m asking.  I don’t know.
Mr. John Klarl stated when the funds get low Mr. Kehoe writes a letter saying “you’re low on funds, replenish the account.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think you’re asking a theoretical question.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated it’s a theoretical question but based on information I’ve been able to find about the solvency of the company…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we haven’t finished the scope of the traffic study yet so the delay is on our end.  We just had a meeting with our consultant today, went over the specific things we want.  I think it’s ready so the expectation is they will be totaled tomorrow or the next day to fund the escrow account and we’ll see if that happens.  We expect it will. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked were you asking ma’am if they can’t…

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated then what?

Mr. Robert Foley asked can we cease and desist on it?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I would say we could deny the application if that’s what it comes to.  If they’re not acting reasonably and responsibly in pursuing the things that we’ve requested them to do, then, from my viewpoint, that’s justifiable grounds for denial of the application.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated thank you.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we’ve received no indication from the applicant that he’s not going to fund the traffic study.  We were compiling all the specific comments that the residents had to go over with our traffic consultant to make sure we hit all the bullet points and major items of concern in this traffic study.  Ideally, we need to do this traffic study during the first or second week of September or once school gets started so we can maximize the impact of the traffic study and get the most up-to-date and most current information.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo asked does the town have a baseline study from before they started operating here last summer?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded yes, in the traffic impact statement our consultant will evaluate the current conditions versus the proposed conditions at maximum use of the site which is the 94…

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated the current conditions include them using the property.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated the current conditions we’ll use the baseline data most likely obtained from the county and/or historical record.  There’ll be a comparison of historical traffic versus proposed traffic with this bus depot.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated great, very good. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated in September, Mike, can we make sure, if this happens this way, that during that period if it’s just two weeks that the schools are open there are no holidays or extended holidays.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated yes, that was a concern of our consultant.  We may have to wait until the second or third week because of Labor Day and some holidays that are ongoing.  We want one week of continuous operation without a delay.  So, it could possibly be the third week of September.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated I have no problem with that kind of a delay.  My concern really was just them pushing it down the road indefinitely.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated I stated the applicant was pretty receptive of doing the traffic study.  He wants to get this project moving along and approved so he’s doing all…

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated it’s moving along already, just saying.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated but he’s doing his due diligence to fund the applicable studies.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo asked and ask part of that traffic study, we had mentioned, I know the board had asked if they direct all traffic in-and-out of Broadway and those of us who live on Broadway would appreciate if other routes are also considered in that in particular Westchester Avenue and Kings Ferry Road; both are used by the Beeline bus system are adequate for bus traffic as well.  I don’t think it’s fair for the residents of Broadway to have all the traffic funneled out through Broadway especially in light of the fact that in October there’s going to be the construction begun on the SPECTRA pipeline across all of us on Broadway and then later on we’re going to have, hopefully, some beautiful ball fields at the end of 11th Street on that same property with the requisite parental driving dropping off and picking up soccer players and baseball players and nice type of traffic, but traffic nonetheless.  The impact of that should be considered for the future of Broadway.

Mr. Robert Foley asked can we make sure, what she’s saying, to diffuse the traffic more because that’s been brought up in the past?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded we’ll reach out to our traffic consultant tomorrow morning to tweak the proposal once more to include future build out and have comments relating to the proposed routes as you stated utilizing Westchester Avenue and/or Kings Ferry Road in addition to Broadway.  We’ll make sure that that comment is addressed in the traffic study along with the build out of future use.  Unfortunately, we don’t know the exact extent of the proposal that you’re referring to, the Con Edison site with the field.  We do know that the town’s intent is to build some fields over there, we just don’t have plans prepared at this point…

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated I know that’s pending…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we can estimate using trip generations, annuals and proposed traffic counts to incorporate that sort of build out.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated wonderful, I appreciate that.  Lastly, I would just ask that if the public hearing remain open until after the study is completed and that residents are able to review the study at that time.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no worries.

Ms. Rosemarie Muscolo stated thank you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated also Madame Chair, that we are in receipt of material that has come in since last meeting: pictures and the fire department report.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. Bernard Vaughey stated good evening, my name is Bernard Vaughey.  I live at 215 Broadway in Verplanck.  I must repeat the earlier statements that I have made and I continue to believe to be true.  Unless you deny this application in its entirety, Montauk Student Bus Company will have profound negative impact on the adjacent and adjoining neighborhoods, the town infrastructure and the environment now and for years to come.  There are still many questions about the Planning Board process and application to date.  The town looks at the town 2013 GIS map for this location.  The paved portion of the property was approximately 18,000 square feet.  The January 15th 2005 application indicates approximately 39,000 square feet gravel parking lot; an increase of more than double.  In their June 19th, 2015 letter to the Planning Board the applicant responds to a question about operating without permits and approvals that, as is customary with cases involving land use applications to cure zoning violations: is this a zoning violation or a planning violation?  I’m not sure which, but the applicant can continue its current operation while the application before the Planning Board is pending.  The applicant is not allowed to expand or enlarge its operation during this time.  The status quo must be preserved during the application process.  This is what the applicant indicated.  Is it acceptable to expand and use an unauthorized expansion if that expansion occurs immediately prior to the starting of the application process?  Isn’t this an unacceptable circumvention of the rules and codes?  If the status quo must be preserved, why is the applicant exceeding that initial footprint of the parking area that was on the existing property?  Why is the town not limiting the applicant to that footprint of the preexisting 18,000 square foot parking area and not the glass storage area that has been expanded as being used for its intended proposed purpose which, based upon the initial submittal was listed as a gravel parking area?  The applicant refers to this as interim work.  Is not that interim work part of this application?  Is the applicant allowed to use this interim work area for a business purpose without an approved site plan?  Would the town or its board allow any of us here to double the size of our garage or our business, call it interim work, occupy it, profit from it, while the permits are being reviewed?  How is this any different?  As far as safety: is the current, not the proposed, but is the current stacking or the method of parking of vehicles on the property a fire, rescue or safety issue?  Montauk has operated for months or most likely operate for many more months in the current configuration until a decision has been made on their application.  The Planning Board is looking for the fire department input on the applicant’s proposed future plans.  Is there any comments or reviews by the same organizations on the current operations?  Can the fire department fight a fire on this property using the current configuration or would it simply as some of the firemen call a ‘surround and drown’?  Is the current configuration a hazard and if so, why is the applicant being allowed to continue his operations as he is currently operating?  Could a rescue be safely performed if someone fell?  If there was a bus fire, what would the ramifications be?  In the current configuration, the fuels, firefighting water chemicals and other vehicle contaminants go into the ground and/or the Hudson River and potentially Haverstraw Bay and its hatchery.  Where is the review for this?  In the applicant’s plan submitted, will a proposed storm water collection system be capable of containing and filtering any and all fluids before they reach the Hudson River?  Where are the plans for the storm water’s systems normal operations and for special circumstances such as vehicle fires?  How will these pollutants be quickly filtered and removed so as not pollute our river?  Does a cutoff wall or other underground as well as above-ground shielding required so as to prevent a repetition of the river pollution we saw recently with the energy transformer fires?  What effect will the release of 10, 100, 1,000 gallons of diesel on other fuels and oils potentially have on Haverstraw Bay?  New York State has designated Haverstraw Bay as a significant coastal fish and wildlife habitat.  This application is very close to the upper limits of Haverstraw Bay.  Where is that potential threat addressed in the application as this parcel and Verplanck as a whole are not serviced by municipal sewers?  As far as the traffic study: I would like to thank the board for taking steps to require the traffic study.  Before you answered some of Rosemarie’s questions on the scope of the study but again, what roadways are being reviewed as part of the study?  The board needs to consider not concentrating all the traffic on one roadway, that being Broadway, and one neighborhood but should consider all three roadways into and out of Verplanck.  We understand and agree with the need to conduct a study when school’s in session and traffic has normalized due to the changes in the schedule and volumes.  With the pending SPECTRA Algonquin project and SPECTRA’s discussions to possibly start pre-construction and other work in Verplanck as soon as September, how will this potentially– additional temporary traffic be addressed?  As the SPECTRA project is to be a project of one year or less in duration, how will the traffic associated with this project be removed from results so as not to artificially skew traffic data and the resulting determinations?  If this additional SPECTRA traffic is not properly addressed, the study will not be truly representative of the traffic in Verplanck.  Bats and the endangered species: has the applicant and the town reviewed the summer and winter habitats of the federally-listed endangered and/or threatened species?  Where can those results be found in the project records?  Among the many species, Indiana bat and the northern long-eared bat typically hibernate in caves and mines.  Could one or all of the kilns which are on the property, with their construction, crevices and narrow openings be a viable winter nesting area for these endangered species?  Where is the corresponding evaluation?  One of the concerns expressed by many of the residents in Verplanck is a significant added vehicle traffic this proposal will generate; both employee cars and the buses.  Buses due their nature and construction take up more of the roadway prism with their operation and their protrusions: the mirrors.  There are many areas along Broadway that do not have 3-foot or wider paved shoulder.  Is the town ready to accept this added liability due to the existence and necessity of cohabitation of roadway with vehicles and pedestrians due to the lack of sidewalk?  Wintertime walking on any cohabitated roadways, especially Broadway, is currently difficult at best and at times causes vehicles to cross lane lines to offer safe passage and a necessary physical separation with others sharing the pavement.  With increased traffic, the opportunity for a safe window of opportunity will decrease.  Will the associated risks increase accordingly?  I believe they will.  As the town is reviewing this application, is the town looking to install sidewalks for areas that don’t have them along the planned routes and/or increasing the width of snow removal to increase the available roadway and shoulder areas for both vehicles and pedestrians?  If additional widths of snow removal is considered, some areas may require actual removal of the snow.  Does the town have the resources available to form this extensive operation as well as an appropriate disposal and storage area?  Please protect our neighborhoods, our children, our home values and our quality of life.  Please deny this application due to its size and the effect on areas outside the limits of the property.  Look at the use currently or within the last 20 years.  The applicant claims a permitted as-of-right use: where are our rights to live and use our neighborhoods?  Who protects the existing and future residents and our neighborhoods?  Hopefully it’s our elected officials on the Planning Board.  It’s unclear if this is a one-time, complete, all-inclusive application or will there be subsequent applications based upon a future revisions as the contractor calls for ‘contractual obligations’ with school districts.  Can the board please clarify and if necessary make this a condition of any decision?  Their fueling and pollution in response to item 22, their June 19th letter talks about the proposed installation; it doesn’t talk about the current operation.  How has and is the fueling operation functioning for the last year and foreseeable future while the application is being reviewed.  Where are those, as the applicant indicates, small amounts of fuel that drip out of the nozzle for 60 plus vehicles going now each and every day onto the item-4 and into the ground water, as there is no current pavement and no collection system?  Who will address the current situation and when?  With the kilns: has the town looked at this area from historical standpoint and consulted with New York State?  Do we know what kind of structures these actually are?  Brick kilns, lime kilns or something else?  Are they worthy or preservation and/or restoration?  Is losing any of these structures acceptable?  When will that determination be made?  This proposal is not appropriate for Verplanck or the town.  I therefore request this application be rejected by the Planning Board.  Thank you for your time.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.  Is there anybody else who wants to speak at this point?
Ms. stated is it possible to turn up those microphones because really my hearing is very good and I can’t hear…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else who wishes to speak at this time?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move we adjourn this public hearing until our next meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this particular public hearing is adjourned until next month and I guess we’ll see you all again.  I already asked if anybody wanted to speak and nobody did so the public hearing…wait a minute.  Just a second.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated wait, the only case that has been adjourned is the Montauk Bus case, although the Hudson Wellness case is not a public hearing but there will be a presentation made by the applicant I believe. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what was the problem?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just to be clear we’re moving down the agenda.  We were talking about Montauk Bus.  We adjourned the public hearing and now the Chair will discuss the next item up for grabs here.



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS: 

PB 4-14  a. Application of Mongoose Inc. for the property of Mongoose Inc., Commercial Real Estate Asset Management Inc., and JPG Cortlandt Inc., for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal permits for a 6 lot subdivision (5 building lots and 1 open space parcel) of a 128.8 acre parcel of property located on the south side of Maple Avenue and on the east side of Dickerson Road and Hilltop Drive as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision of Abee Rose Situate in the Town of Cortlandt, Westchester County, NY” prepared by Badey & Watson Surveying and Engineering PC, latest revision dated July 20, 2015.
Mr. Frederick Wells stated good evening, Frederick Wells from Tim Miller Associates.  We’ve submitted updated plans for this board since the last meeting which shows a cul-de-sac, turnaround on the road as was discussed at the last meeting and have fine tuned some of the grading.  At the last meeting we had discussed possibly taking this to a public hearing and that’s where we are, I think at this point unless there are questions to be discussed now.  
Mr. Mike Preziosi stated I’ve performed a cursory review of the revised plans have gotten to reviewing their proposed profile of, I believe, the cul-de-sac layout is a lot better than the previous wide turnaround and the band proposed hammerhead turnaround so I’m okay with that layout and design.  I do have some concerns with some of the vertical profiles and curvature of the cul-de-sac and some of the proposed driveway grades heading towards lots 1 and 2.  These comments will be compiled and sent over to your office for your review and if you can address them.  One of the things that I had asked for, for this submittal, was a not an in-depth or full-prepared SWPPP but a preliminary SWPPP and/or location shown on the site plans for any sort of detention basins and/or bio-retention areas required in accordance with town code and New York State DEC storm requirements.  All I saw on the plans was a proposed energy dissipater and a few catch basins.  The SWPPP is going to have to be prepared in a little bit more in-depth and in accordance with DEC and town code.  That’s going to require pre-imposed hydrological studies, a design for water quality and water quantity for the road runoff and any other site disturbance because you are proposing more than 1 acre-worth of disturbance.  We’ll work towards that and to start to prepare a more in-depth and thorough SWPPP. At this point I think we’re probably one more month off before our public hearing. 

Mr. Frederick Wells stated it’s understood that we need to develop and we’re continuing to develop the drainage design.  It is our hope that in concept, we’ve shown the areas, including the limits of disturbance.  There’s also some labels on there that show areas that we were trying to collect water and either have pipes under a driveway, a dissipater or small basin but those haven’t graded out so they’re not shown graded, but the general design obviously is designed to meet the state standards.  We’re trying to get to the point of providing you with a SWPPP that has the details and calculations that is typical of a project like this. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are they going to be ready for next time, the materials…

Mr. Frederick Wells responded I was hoping to have some more information tonight but the engineer unfortunately is on vacation so that I wasn’t able to report to you verbally what he’s proposing.  We’re progressing and we’ll continue to progress.  We can describe more at the hearing, or at the next meeting.  We certainly want to advance this, move along and get the feeling that we’re on the right track.  That’s kind of what we’ve taken a step-by-step…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re clearly not having a hearing next time so whatever information staff wants from you will you have it for them by say September?  You won’t.  You don’t think so.

Mr. Frederick Wells stated if you’re not going to hold the hearing, I’m not going to promise to deliver it for a hearing.  We’ll get it to you as quickly as we can.  Obviously I could not bring it tonight.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what about the board?

Mr. Jim Creighton stated since we’re moving closer to a public hearing but not quite there yet, Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked I just thought I’d ask, you probably did this already, but did we get comments from the fire department and the sanitation departments on this latest revision?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded not on the latest.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked can we get those?

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated in previous applications it was discussed with our Director of Environmental Services that a proposed cul-de-sac be the best option for refuse collection.  This proposal shows a 96-foot diameter cul-de-sac which would meet town code.  There’s some slight tweaking of the grades that need to be worked out and I’ll touch base with Fred and his engineers to work those out and start to prepare comments for the preliminary SWPPP so we can get the basin size shown on the plans for public. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked but they have commented on it?
Mr. Mike Preziosi responded previously yes, not on this.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and the fire department comments would have been a while ago.  One of the things that Fred would be concerned about is; we sort of got to get a plan to a point and then give it back to the fire department for them to comment again.  We’re still going back and forth.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated as long as they’re in the loop somewhere.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words it’s the full cul-de-sac, not a hammerhead?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded yes, this is a full cul-de-sac.  It’s 96 foot in diameter, meets all of our fire code and state building code for turnaround for radius.  I believe this layout is the preferred alternative amongst staff and different departments with just some minor site tweaking and a little bit of work with the grades to make sure they meet town code but for the most part, this is the preferred alternative as far as access to the lots would be concerned.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated thank you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just on the question, I was handed some letters from concerned neighbors and there’s approximately 50 signatures of neighbors concerned about this project, you could say in opposition for this project.  I will copy these for the board and the applicant as well.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we were on the question actually so all in favor?

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Frederick Wells stated so I’ll be back next month to ask for a public hearing.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay.  You’re not getting it unless you get them what they want.  It’s up to you.
PB 1-14      b.
Application of Hudson National Golf Club for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a Country Club and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a private golf driving range and teaching facility located on an approximately 19.4 acre parcel of property located north of the existing Hudson National Golf Club, south of Hollis Lane, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Hudson National Golf Course Driving Range and Teaching Facility” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated January 5, 2015.

Mr. Bob Davis stated good evening, I’m Bob Davis, I’m the attorney for Hudson National Golf Club and with me tonight is our engineer; Ralph Mastromonaco along with our wetlands consultant Steve Marino from Tim Miller Associates.  When we last met with you at the June 2nd meeting, Mr. Marino took you through his initial wetlands report and after that meeting on June 12th we met with the town’s professional staff and with your wetlands consultant Steve Coleman to discuss his thoughts on our initial report and to go over the comments on his June 1st memo.  As a result of that meeting, we devised a very different and much more substantial mitigation plan which replaces the effected wetlands by a more than 2 to 1 ratio and we also significantly augmented the biodiversity section of our report as well.  We also included a point-by-point response to Mr. Coleman’s June 1st memo.  As that revised report took such a substantial effort, it wasn’t possible to submit it in time for the deadline for the moved up June 30th meeting but we did submit it on July 14th which gave Mr. Coleman a chance to do a follow up memo and I believe he’s here tonight.  Hopefully we should be in a position to move the wetlands topic toward conclusion tonight, although there’s probably going to be some more tweaking with the staff based on Mr. Coleman’s memo.  I think though, at the outset, and we’ll let Mr. Marino show you the revised report in a minute to speak about it, but two important points in Mr. Coleman’s July 28th report on our revised plan to note are that it is consistent with the recommended criteria outlined in the town’s mitigation policy and that our new mitigation area is a much more acceptable location for meeting the required compensatory wetland mitigation.  Those are two important points on our mitigation plan which, as I said, has been substantially revised.  Of course, as we noted and discussed a little at the last meeting since we have discussed the project with you and staff for so long, I think since last December and before that for some months with the Zoning Board, we would like to commence the public hearing process in September regardless of how we end up tonight on the wetlands.  For now though I’ll turn this over to Mr. Marino and he’ll give you a summation of our revised mitigation plan.
Mr. Steve Marino stated good evening, Steve Marino, Tim Miller Associates: I’m the wetlands consultant on the project.  As Mr. Davis mentioned at the last meeting there was questions about the habitat assessment and wetland assessment that were completed for the project.  Additional detail was requested so we went back and did that and following that we did have a meeting with staff and Mr. Coleman to discuss the mitigation proposals to see if there were some tweaks we can do that.  We also had kind of back pocketed that last meeting revised alternative for the mitigation which we’ve prepared and submitted with part of this most recent submission.  We’ll just go quickly through some of the things that we’ve done since the last meeting.  One of the issues that came up with our previous habitat assessment was that more work needed to be done, site-specific to species found on the site both vegetative and wild life.  Actually Chris if you could go to number 2?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked site context?

Mr. Steve Marino responded species list, yes, thank you.  I’m at the age where I need two pairs of glasses.  That is a summary of the additional species that we located on the site.  First that’s vegetation and then you scroll down; a number of wildlife species that we also observed on the site.  I think we’ve given a much more complete look at what type of habitat is present out on the site.  If you go back to number 1 which is the aerial photographs.  We did present in previous meetings site context in terms of the history of the site.  Chris if you could just scroll through some of those pages?  Going back to the ‘40s you can see that the site – that’s 1947 right there, you can see that the southern half of the site was in fact open agricultural land.  There are several buildings on the property.  Included with our most recent report there are a number of photographs of old foundations, wells, there’s structures out there with dates of 1934 and concrete on the structure.  It gives you an idea that historically this was a disturbed or a used site.  Over the years when those activities ceased, the property did start a succession back into woodlands but there still numerous open areas of grassy openings in the forest canopy and a lot of old materials on the site.  Chris, I think those are photos.  These are all included in that report that you’ve received in our last submission.  This is a typical upland habitat here.  You can see that there are young trees on the property for much of the property.  There are a number of larger trees which were identified during the tree survey process but generally, it’s a younger forest.  You can see that it’s generally devoid of understory.  There’s a lot of barberry and other invasive nuisance kind of vegetation in the understory, what there is of understory.  Those were taken in June, these photos and you can see that there’s not a whole lot going on underneath the forest.  Between the deer browsing on the site – this is an old road that was through the property, hay-scented fern, large areas of that and openings in the canopy, rock walls, just shows that the property was used for residential purposes and agricultural purposes back in the day.  In addition to that and car parts and vehicles – there’s the 1934.  I’m not sure what that structure was: a well head of some sort.  In completing that we also added additional information about the conditions of the wetlands on the site and more in-depth description of the buffer areas in the area the wetland that’s going to be disturbed.  Chris, if you could go to the wetland: there’s a wetland one, wetland graphic.  This continues to show the area on the north end of the site where the disturbance is proposed to occur.  You can see there where it says ‘tees’, that’s the tee box that will be facing southwest as part of the driving range.  The yellow area is the sloped areas that would be created in order to create that terrace for the driving range.  The green that you see is the wetland as it was flagged by Mr. Coleman.  The blue areas are the water courses that drain that wetland.  As mentioned in the report, that wetland derives from ground water seepage coming from under the golf course where it intercepts with the surface at that point and saturates some parts of the surface.  Much of that wetland is covered in stilt grass which is an invasive grass species and then from there to the north and the south part of that wetland, it drains offsite to the west.  That northern water course that comes out of there also is drainage from the detention basis on the golf course property proper right there.  There’s a culvert under the existing cart path that flows underneath there and then drains out to the north end and west.  That’s again, previously disturbed by construction of the golf course, other activities that happened in that area over the years.  There’s some contention as to whether that wetland actually wasn’t created when the golf course was built by runoff through that section.  Originally we had planned to do some work in that immediate area of the disturbance for the tees.  After having our meeting – we had started thinking about this before the last meeting but then after having a meeting with town staff we did make further details on that.  This map here kind of gives you a site context as to where the new mitigation is relative to the – that’s the new mitigation area that Chris is circling right there.  The yellow area is the new driving range teaching facility as it is proposed.  Right up there is the wetland as it exists and is proposed for disturbance.  We just wanted to make sure everyone is comfortable with the idea that the mitigation was in close proximity to the impact.  Generally, we try and stay in the same watershed if possible, on the same property, because there is an existing pond on the golf course property we’re able to just move a little bit further to the south and do our mitigation still on site.  If we go to the mitigation plan.  This is our proposal for mitigating the wetlands loss at the north end of the driving range.  This is an existing pond and wetland system on that – what’s really at the top of the sheet is the western edge of the pond is an existing dam structure that holds that water into the pond.  What we’re proposing to do is grade along the edges on the southeast and southwest side of the pond creating saturated areas that we can then use for wetland plantings and expansion of the wetland community on the site.  The area that’s cross-hatched green up in that – right there, is an area of fragmities that’s growing on the site, it’s about 3,500 square feet of fragmities which is an invasive, non-native species.  We propose to go and clean that out and replant that area with native species.  There are several places on the site where we can intercept runoff from the existing golf course, run it through our new mitigation areas to make sure they stay wet, not just from groundwater backup from the pond but also from the influx of new water coming through.  As part of this we’ve proposed invasive species removal, that’s one of the descriptions you see there on that plan.  There’s a detailed monitoring and maintenance plan for the wetland as to how it would be planted taking care of over the first three years to make sure it comes established that the plants become established and other notes associated with the planting of that wetland.  I know that Mr. Coleman’s last comment letter he had some questions, looking for a little bit more specifics as far as that maintenance and monitoring goes and we’re happy to provide that.  As Mr. Davis said, we would like to – we think we’re at a point now where we’d like to move forward and get the public hearing scheduled just to see what, if anything, anyone else in the neighborhood has to say.  I’m available for any questions, because I kind of ran through things but…
Mr. Jim Creighton stated haven’t heard anybody address Mr. Coleman’s suggestion that the driving range be shortened.

Mr. Steve Marino stated that’s not a wetlands issue, that’s an otherwise…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated it is.  It’s out there.  It needs to be addressed.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we figured we would address that in some detail in a meeting with staff.  We can go through some of the questions we have with it, however you would like to do it, but we have a number of ideas on that and we thought speaking to staff it something that was maybe more amenable to be discussed with staff.  I can go through some of the issues with it.  We have issues with the concept but there may be abilities to tweak it somewhere in between.  I don’t know what the type of depth you’d like me to go into now. 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I think if there’s an answer or there’s a proposal we’d like to hear it but if you’re still working on it that’s okay to continue.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we can’t fully agree with what Mr. Coleman’s saying.  We have a number of issues there in terms of the functionality of it, in terms of safety issues with it and in terms of rather substantial retaining walls which he references: retaining walls. 

Mr. Steve Marino stated if you don’t mind I’d like to throw just one thing.  In terms of, again we talk about context a little bit as to where this is located on the site and where the wetlands are located, as part of the balancing act we do on these things is we do have to look at what the function and value of that wetland is.  Again, I think it’s under a ¼ of an acre, it’s under 2/10 of an acre in size that we’re impacting.  Generally, it’s collection of surface and subsurface flow that gets channelized down the hill, so I think it’s important for us to keep in context that we look at the functions of the wetland and the quality of the wetland when we’re talking about filling a wetland.  Certainly, if this was a pristine wetland we would do everything we could to avoid it but there are other factors involved when you consider the function.
Mr. Bob Davis stated and there’s one other general factor involved and that’s that we know the incentive of Mr. Coleman is to, in good faith, to avoid the initial intrusion into the wetland because that’s something that your code looks at but it also looks at whether what we’re doing there’s a practical alternative to and we feel at least in the nature in which it’s proposed, in the manner in which it’s proposed in the report which is in fairly general terms that it’s not a feasible or practical alternative for us for a number of reasons.  But, we do think it lends itself to a discussion with town staff.  The worst case scenario is that we know we have a mitigation plan that everyone agrees, ourselves and the professional staff and Mr. Coleman more than meets the criteria of your code.  The only issue is; can we eliminate any of the need for that mitigation?  So, if anything, what we’re looking at is further reducing the impacts under wetlands law which we’ve already substantially done with a mitigation plan that otherwise fully complies with your code with the more than 2 to 1 ratio of replacement.  We think that we can spend a session with staff and come up with a final determination on precisely what we’re doing, but we think we’re pretty close to there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked in other words you’re saying you don’t feel it’s feasible or practical to reduce the length, the 300 plus yards that you’re still willing to discuss it with staff?

Mr. Bob Davis responded we’re willing to discuss it.  We need to come up, if there is an alternative, it needs to be one that first of all it’s not just 300 yards they proposed, it’s 335 yards.  Our current driving range that we’re replacing is only 240 yards which is woefully inadequate by pro standards and although the reduced proposal which we think is closer to 250 yards which makes it just about what we have than 280 so it’s really more of about an 85 yard difference.  This is a high-quality course that a lot of pros play on: touring pros come here.  There’s a lot of top national amateur outings and events.  A golfer who’s using a driving range, the whole point of it is you need to see where your ball lands because you need to see where the distance of it is, the accuracy of it, the direction that it goes after the shot and we have a large percentage of people in the club, just as club members let alone visiting pros who hit the ball more than 275 yards and it’s estimated…

Mr. Robert Foley stated the 300 plus yards or 335…

Mr. Bob Davis stated that’s a pro-quality standard and so we need to maintain that distance.  We’re certainly willing to tweak the plan to take into account the wetlands if there’s any feasible way to do it but we do need to do it in a way that maintains the distance.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked may I just ask a question and you can continue?  Did you just say that 335 was the pro standard?

Mr. Bob Davis responded that’s a standard because a good portion of the membership plus the pros at the club, the touring pros who come when they’re on tour for other tournaments at the events and outings where we have nationally-ranked players where there are pros or amateurs, all of those people in addition to a good percentage of the club members, all of those people who visit can hit the ball over 300 yards so the length is designed by one of the great architectural firms for golf in the nation: the Fazio firm his name is on the plans and they’ve designed it to meet the highest quality for a golf course of this standard and for the people who use it.  So, the length is extremely important and that’s the real reason for the project because the current golf course, the driving range is only 240 yards and that’s inadequate for most players and poses a safety hazard to the course besides.  We are also very cognizant of the slope disturbance here and the proposal’s just been made in general terms and we understand the concerns but certain aspects of it could require green walls of 30 to 40 feet high which is certainly don’t want on a golf course or anyplace else.  That’s the type of thing that we have to discuss with staff to talk about what we can do to tweak that one particular tee box; there’s two tee boxes to work on that one – see if there’s anything we can do there to further mitigate the wetland’s intrusion but we do need to maintain the length or else the project’s not feasible.  It basically puts us back to where we are, but I think that it’s something if we sit down with staff and Mr. Coleman, we can see what we can come up with.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but generally speaking the higher length: 335 is what you’re catering to whereas generally, when Mr. Coleman points out that that may be too long, you’re really catering to some heavy hitters…

Mr. Bob Davis responded yes, we don’t just have the average golfer, either has members or participants on the course, this is one of the highest quality courses you’ll find around here and it defeats the whole project to have basically have something that’s no different than the range we already have.  I think that’s all we would say and we would intend to – we’ve spoken to Chris, we would intend to set up a meeting with him in the very near future and we think that we’re in a suitable position, hopefully staff agrees, that we could at least move forward with the public hearing process in September.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know, they’re insisting on having the public hearing, are you okay with that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s okay with staff.  We would advertise the existing drawing that doesn’t take into account any tweaks of possibly changing the driving range.  So, that’s what we’ll advertise.  Based on our meetings, if some tweaks are agreed upon that will be shown at the public hearing but the one that will be advertised will be the currently submitted one.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we schedule a public hearing on this matter for September 1st.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing on the question is Hollis Lane is the closest residential area and that’s where we put the orange sign at 18 months ago or whenever we first started so that’s where we would put the public hearing sign but I’m thinking that I don’t want to pick and choose what residents on Hollis Lane get the notice so I think we should notify everybody on Hollis Lane?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded that’s fine, no problem.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think the sign should go down at the intersection of Hollis Lane.

Mr. Bob Davis stated that’s fine.  Ralph will take care of that and you may recall at the Zoning Board meeting, there were a few residents from Hollis Lane at the very first meeting and they were satisfied and showed no further interest once we explained to them we were not going to access the property off of Hollis Lane.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so do you mean the sign at Hollis Lane intersect with Mount Airy?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so you’ll have your hearing next time.

Mr. Bob Davis stated thank you Madame Chair.

PB 4-15      c.
Application of MJD Contracting for Preliminary Plat Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for a 2 lot minor subdivision of an approximately 2 acre parcel of property located at 16 Hillcrest Avenue, near Grexa Place, as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Sketch Integrated Plot Plan and Details and Profiles” prepared by John Karell, Jr., P.E. dated May 6, 2015.

Ms. Lisa Cozzi stated good evening everyone, Lisa Cazi with MJD Contracting.  From the last meeting we had 6 items that you required be addressed and I believe our engineer John Karell has addressed all of these items including updating the SWPPP and the surveys.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I don’t know, you’ve got everything?

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated the SWPPP by John Karell was revised, has been reviewed and is acceptable at this point. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the only thing we’re waiting on is our arborist to complete the tree report but we don’t think that should hinder your site inspection. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so we’re going to set a site inspection for August 30th?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back and set a site inspection for August 30th.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s Sunday morning 9 o’clock.  Someone should be there representing the applicant.

Ms. Lisa Cozzi stated absolutely. Thank you so much.



*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS 
PB 5-15    a.
Application of Teatown Lake Reservation Inc. for renewal of a Special Permit for a Private Nature Preserve to conduct a summer camp program and a weekday public program for property located on the north side of Teatown Road, approximately 3,000 feet east of Quaker Ridge Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Special Permit Map, Cliffdale Farm North” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. dated July 23, 2010. (see prior PB 10-10)

Ms. Diane Barron stated good evening, I’m Diane Barron, I’m the managing director of Teatown and I’m here tonight just to submit a request the second renewal of Special Use Permit for Cliffdale Farm for education programs.  I think the last 5 years have run very smoothly.  Our programming there is well below the levels that the permit stipulates and as far as I know we haven’t had any problems so hopefully I will be granted a renewal.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked if staff – did you ever get the traffic – you didn’t get a traffic report from them yet?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s not required anymore but one thing that I did notice, I was starting to work on the referral letters because by the Special Permit requirements we have to refer this to the police departments, our Environmental Services department and the county and 5 years ago there was a very detailed list of all your programs, maybe that hasn’t changed but I need to transmit that to all these agencies.  I don’t think I got an updated one.  So, I’ll need that.

Ms. Diane Barron asked the programming for the last 5 years?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded what you’re proposing for the next 5 years.

Ms. Diane Barron stated unchanged.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’ll show you what I have now, the Chairperson noted the drawing is 5 years old which is fine because nothing is changing to the drawing but I would like the programming to at least reflect a current date.

Ms. Diane Barron responded okay.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what about the review memo situation?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that needs to be referred back for a review memo.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated for a review memo.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated yes.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Diane Barron stated thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re welcome.

PB 6-15    b.
Application of Hudson Ridge Wellness Center, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit to reuse the seven existing buildings located at the former Hudson Institute property to provide a 92 bed private residential treatment program for individuals who are recovering from chemical dependency on a 20.83 acre property located at 2016 Quaker Ridge Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan, Hudson Ridge Wellness Center” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. dated July 16, 2015. (see prior PB 49-86)

Mr. Bob Davis stated good evening.  I’m Bob Davis again.  I’m the attorney for the applicant Touch and Education and Wellness Center.  We’ve given the board a very comprehensive submission initially.  However, we’re here tonight just for our initial appearance for staff referral as is your practice before further board review.  So, I’ll just try to give you a brief overview tonight.  The application, as you noted, is for a Special Permit and Site Plan Approval for a specialty hospital for people suffering from alcohol and other substance use disorders.  This use is consistent with the historical use of the site which from the 1920s into the 1950s was developed and operated by Dr. Robert Lam and the Lam Foundation for the very same type of hospital use that we’re proposing.  Later there’s been a number of other institutional uses on the site for which Special Permits were issued, for example: IBM in the 1950s and then the Hudson Institute from the 1960s into the 1980s.  There was even a Special Permit issued actually by court order but a special permit issued in 1999 for another type of hospital use which apparently never actually commenced.  Our clients purchased the property in 2010.  It had been in disuse for many years except by frequent trespassers who did a great deal of damage to the beautiful buildings on the site which had become dilapidated and covered with graffiti and the property had really been a haven for wild parties and illegal hunting.  But since our clients took over they’ve not only secured the property and stopped the public nuisance in the neighborhood but they’ve spent hundreds of thousands of dollars so far toward renovating and refurbishing the buildings and bringing them up to code and they’ve also planted extensive landscaping along the perimeter of the site.  Tonight, I’d just like to try to allay concerns in the neighborhood because it’s very important to know what this hospital will be and what it will not be.  Most people are familiar with the Betty Ford Clinic for example in California and a number of similar places we’ve mentioned in our materials: in Connecticut and along the eastern seaboard and it’s on those types of facilities that our hospital will be modeled.  Accordingly, this will be a very high-end upscale hospital for affluent patients who are referred by medical professionals.  Probably most of them will be referred through corporate sponsored programs.  It’s very important to note that there will be no clients from the penal system or who are government assisted.  This will be a private pay hospital.  It’s also important to note that all of the patients either will have already undergone detoxification elsewhere or don’t need it and they will be tested before admission to make sure that they will not be on drugs or alcohol at the time they come to this hospital and of course, there will be no such substances on site.  Even so, there’ll be extensive professional prescreening and background checks.  There will be no clients accepted who have any serious psychiatric history or who have any violent or criminal backgrounds, notwithstanding that, there’ll be 24-hour professional security and a well-recognized firm, national firm in this field will manage and run the operations of the hospital.  The patients will not be allowed to drive or have vehicles…
Mr. Steven Kessler asked excuse me, what firm is that?

Mr. Bob Davis responded say that again.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what firm will be running it?

Mr. Bob Davis responded a firm called Dan Brown Company.  They wrote the operations report that was part of our submission.  The patients will not be allowed to drive or have vehicles on site.  Any visitation will be limited to one day a month for each patient.  In short, this is a wellness center, hence the name, it’s intended to provide a very private, quiet, peaceful, bucolic setting.  There’ll be no disturbance let alone any danger to the neighborhood and the patients, of course, clearly don’t want to draw attention to themselves.  They’re there voluntarily to get well.  It’s also a very environmentally friendly project.  It’s a 20-acre site, 20 plus acres and also an affiliate of the applicant’s has purchased an adjoining 20-acre site outside the town of Cortlandt which will not be built upon but will be used as a natural buffer for the hospital.  Only the existing buildings on site are being used.  There’s no new buildings or additions to be constructed.  Accordingly, there’ll be no intrusion into or impact on any sensitive environmental features including trees or wetlands.  There’ll be no significant traffic impact.  As we said, the patients won’t have cars and the traffic will generally consist only of staff coming to the hospital at non-peak hours.  Unlike a general hospital there’ll be no emergency room and extremely limited visitation as I said, so that reduces traffic as well.  There’ll be private water and septic on site so there’s no use of public infrastructure in that regard.  As noted in the materials we submitted, the project is consistent with the town’s Master Plan and Open Space Plan recommendations for the site.  Unlike the case with certain other permitted uses, uses permitted as-of-right by the way, this site will remain on the town tax rolls based on the tax analysis in our submission it is expected that taxes on the property will increase by over half a million dollars annually although no new school children will be generated and there’ll be little use of town services.  In sum, this proposed use will have much less impact on the environment and the neighborhood than other permitted uses, not only a full-scale residential subdivision but particularly the types of social and religious uses that are permitted as-of-right and have expressed interest in the site to our clients. Finally, it must be noted that these patients are a protected class under the Americans with Disabilities Act and they’re entitled to reasonable accommodations in the application of the local zoning laws.  So, I think that gives you a basic broad overview and we would hope to meet with staff, perhaps, before they generate its report to you and before we meet with you again sometime later in the fall.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked just a couple of grounding questions here: you used three terms here, in the application it says private residential treatment program, you mentioned hospital, you mentioned wellness center.  Which one is it and what is the permitting authority of the state that governs?
Mr. Bob Davis responded for zoning purposes it is a hospital, it’s a medical facility.  It will have doctors, nurses and so forth to help people get over their substance use disorders.  It’s permitted under your code, hospitals are permitted by Special Permits specifically under your code it had a number of amendments through the years.  The word ‘hospital’ is not defined in your code but your code definitions section refers you over to the federal labor classification manuals when things are not defined and if you check that, as we pointed out in our materials…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what article of the state are you applying under?

Mr. Bob Davis responded we’re not applying under an article?  We’re applying under your zoning code.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no, no, but you have to be – does this facility have to be authorized by the state?

Mr. Bob Davis responded it doesn’t have to be authorized by the state but as we put forth in our operations report…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked it’s not like an article 28 or anything of that sort?

Mr. Bob Davis responded I believe it is not under article 28.  We have researched that and I believe it’s not under article 28.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so the state has absolutely no governance over what you’re doing?
Mr. Bob Davis responded I think the state Health Department has authority.  I haven’t looked at that in a while because we researched that some time ago.  I think the state – there are certain requirements of the State Health Department but it’s not under article 28, but I will double check that and of course we’ll comply with any – we’ll have that answer for you next time for sure, but we certainly will comply with any state regulations.  But, we fall certainly as a permitted use under your code, under the labor manual because under the category of ‘specialty hospitals’, as we pointed out in our submission are those which treat drug and alcohol disorders.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you also mentioned that it’s for people with chemical dependency problems but typically people have multiple conditions.  There are people that do have behavioral problems that are in addition to chemical dependency problems.  How do your parse these people out?  You said you’re only going to treat chemical dependency but clearly people have multiple conditions.

Mr. Bob Davis responded as we said, it’s likely that someone who may have a dependency problem may have a behavioral problem but these types of facilities use professional screening people and medical people.  Anyone with a very serious psychiatric disorder or anyone with a violent background or a propensity toward violence or a criminal background are not going to be accepted in this facility.  As we move along, I’m sure that we will have people who will be operating the facility come and speak to you on those types of details but we’re very serious about that and we anticipate understandable concerns of people in the neighborhood of who would be in this hospital.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what do you expect the average stay to be?

Mr. Bob Davis responded the average stay is probably, as I understand it, in the neighborhood of a month or two.  It varies of course with the individual but it’ll be more than days certainly.  It’ll more like a month or something to that effect.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked regarding the renovations that have already been made, what is the basis for those?  Are there any services being rendered there now?  Is business being conducted there now?

Mr. Bob Davis responded no, all of that’s been done with the knowledge of the Building Department if there’s a Building Permit that’s been needed it’s been gotten but right now the only permitted use of the property is as a single-family residence and one of the principles of the applicant actually resides on site in one of the houses with his family but other than that, there’s no services being performed there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked all the extensive renovations that I read about here are just in the one building?

Mr. Bob Davis responded no, they’ve been throughout the buildings.  We’ve given you extensive before and after photographs with our submission and the renovations go over the 7 buildings because all of the buildings had been damaged in one form or another.  They needed new roofs for example.  A lot of damage was done by trespassers in the interiors of the building.  A lot of trashing of the interiors and you’ll see numerous photos of that, that we’ve submitted to you.

Mr. Robert Foley asked renovations have been going on for well over a few years?

Mr. Bob Davis responded several years at this point.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so is it fair to say that the renovations have been being made in anticipation of this proposed use?

Mr. Bob Davis responded well, the buildings had to be secured for one thing and a lot of the renovations were intended along those lines, but I’ve only been involved for the last year or so but I think initially it was the intent to use it for some form of hospital use, an institutional use of some type.  The principles are very strongly philosophically involved in assisting people with substance disorders. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked are there any further renovations that would be necessary if this application were to be granted?

Mr. Bob Davis responded I think mainly interior ones are on-going.  It’s pretty substantial need for them, especially in the, what I would call the main hospital building, the initial building that was built in the ‘20s.  I walked the site and that’s a large building and it needs an awful lot of work.  The other buildings: there’s one that was formerly used as a conference center which is fairly large.  There’s a maintenance garage.  The others are more like single-family residence type buildings.

Mr. Robert Foley asked when you got the permits may I ask staff if they would have stated what the purpose of the renovations were over the past few years?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded we’ve only had general conversations with the Building Department.  When the project gets reviewed by staff, they will have to comment on that.  I’m not sure we necessarily agree with the applicant’s – because I think there might be a violation that’s been issued which I would have to confirm with the Building Department.

Mr. Bob Davis stated I can say what that was.  There was one violation issued which we’ve disagreed with, but we are understanding, with the Building Department, is it will be rectified here.  That was the basically, the cleaning out if you will of the room over the storage garage, the maintenance garage I should say and it was our contention that that could be used for storage in conjunction with the single-family residence of the site.  The Building Department didn’t agree with that so that one particular violation – we’re not making any use of that now and we actually cleaned it out which the Building Department wanted us to do but that violation is in abeyance because part of our application will be to use that space above the maintenance garage for administrative offices.  So, it’s part of this application.  Other than that there were no violations whatsoever.  The Building Department, Mr. Rogers has been intimately involved in the site, has walked the site on more than one occasion with the applicants and gone over the work that’s been done.
Mr. Robert Foley asked it would have been in compliance with any environmental issues, asbestos removal and all that?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded we will check with Mr. Martin Rogers tomorrow morning to determine what type of inspections were performed relative to the work that was performed and as shown in the photographs submitted with this proposal.  We will also ask the applicant to allow us to walk the site with Mr. Rogers to see the exact extent of all the renovations performed to make sure that the proper Building Permits were filed for, electrical, plumbing as well…

Mr. Bob Davis responded there have been a number of Building Permits issued recently and of course that’s no problem.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated okay, we will confirm that but we would also like at this point just to state that work associated with this type of use should not really be ongoing.  Typical maintenance of the property is of course your right by use, and John can correct me if I’m wrong, but moving forward, any sort of Building Permit that’s going to be filed for this type of structure and use of the property should really be held until final approval and/or review has been performed.
Mr. Bob Davis stated we’ll take that under advisement.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked that’s why I was trying to ask if there was anything being done there right now.  That was a concern with the fact that renovations were being made.  Why would you make renovations unless you had a need for them?

Mr. Bob Davis responded largely for security and also to stop the buildings from dilapidating further, for example: the roof certainly needed to be replaced or the damage would have been worse.  The most recent work has been largely planting.  There’s been beautiful evergreen plantings along the perimeter.  They also put up a fence to secure the property, at least along some of the boundaries.  There’s been a lot of…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s what Michael is getting at.  While the landscaping and fencing may be beautiful and helpful that’s part of this Planning Board’s Site Plan Approval process. They may want different landscaping or different fencing.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do you have security there now watching this property?

Mr. Bob Davis responded I believe they do have some security but I’m not a 100% sure.  As I say, there’s only the lady living there on the property and that’s one of the principles of the applicant.

Mr. Robert Foley asked this is further down the road here in the process, in your expanded environmental assessment page 6, what you’re talking about, what you’re proposing for there, this wellness center, the closest thing to it nearby would be Silver Hill in New Canaan…

Mr. Bob Davis responded I think that’s one of the ones mentioned in our report.  We did a number of studies on those in connection with the traffic generation.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but also the similar setup with the staff: medical, psychiatric…

Mr. Bob Davis responded that’s my understanding that it would…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but I believe Silver Hill is licensed by the state.

Mr. Robert Foley stated yes, it’s Connecticut.

Mr. Bob Davis stated Silver Hill is in Connecticut I believe.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated by license by whomever.

Mr. Bob Davis stated like I said, we’ll clarify the licensing requirement.  I didn’t think we’d get into that level of detail tonight, but we have a lot of it in our submission.  Our submission’s voluminous as you know.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked my question is probably comparable to you two were asking and that is: is there an agency which is supposed to come in and check, say review, or assess, what it is you’re doing?

Mr. Bob Davis responded I believe the Department of Health does that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is this a periodic…

Mr. Bob Davis responded in reference to article 28 was to the mental hygiene law…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is this periodic or just a one-time thing?

Mr. Bob Davis responded I don’t know the answer to that off the top of my head but we’ll find that answer.

Mr. Robert Foley stated maybe Steve would know.

Mr. Bob Davis stated I’m sure the County Health Department is involved…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated well that’s why I mentioned article 28 because that is…

Mr. Robert Foley stated certification from the – like a hospital or something.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated yes, article 28 would be as Mr. Davis said, it’s the mental hygiene.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked but you will check as to whether there will be ongoing, periodic review or assessment of what you’re doing?
Mr. Bob Davis responded absolutely, certainly County Health Department requirements apply.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked you said that all of the patients will come in voluntarily, is that right?

Mr. Bob Davis responded correct, private pay.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and pay their own way?

Mr. Bob Davis responded either pay their own way or they’ll have insurance to pay their way but it won’t be government referrals or subsidized, no.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is this similar to the one that was proposed, I don’t know what the status, in Yorktown recently?

Mr. Bob Davis responded no, that’s totally different.  I actually handled that matter in Yorktown.  That’s a sober living residence.  That’s actually, if you want to draw the easiest analogy, that’s where people might go after they leave this facility.  It’s kind of a transitional residence for them to have some peer support in transitioning back to their homes.  Those people will go to work during the day and things of that nature.  There’s no medical treatment at that residence.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so this is more of an institutional type of environment?

Mr. Bob Davis responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I’m sorry, you said insurance may pay but for insurance to pay you have to be a licensed entity.

Mr. Bob Davis stated again, we will check on that.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’re back on this whole issue again.

Mr. Bob Davis stated my point is that it’s a private pay facility.  We will confirm with you who the licensing people are.  I think it’s the State Health Department and the County Health Department are the main entities involved.  I think it does not fall under article 28 of the mental hygiene law, but it’s not an unregulated facility.  It’s not like the Wild West.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is there a certain age of the patient population that you would expect or is it – you said people are going to self-direct themselves there but you, a 12 year-old with a chemical dependency problem does not self-direct.

Mr. Bob Davis responded no, this would generally be corporate referrals.  Most of the big corporations now have their own internal drug and alcohol treatment programs and many of, what we would expect as with other facilities many of the people would come through that venue.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you did say they don’t have free reign while they’re there, they can’t drive their cars out or…

Mr. Bob Davis responded no, they will have no cars on site.  There’ll be shuttle buses that will take them from public transportation to and from the site.

Mr. John Klarl asked can you leave the site without permission?

Mr. Bob Davis responded no.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what would be the maximum capacity of…

Mr. Bob Davis responded the maximum capacity, which is I think in accordance with State Health Department regulations, would be 92 beds.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked actually let’s be right up front, do you expect that at some point the hospital will house 92 patients at any given time?

Mr. Bob Davis stated I’m sorry.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked would you expect that the hospital would house 92 patients at any given time?

Mr. Bob Davis responded we certainly don’t expect that in the early years of the operation.  That’s the total capacity.  I don’t think it’s easy to say that at this point whether it would or would not but certainly it’s not our expectation that during the early period of operation it would.  It’s not like it would open and have 92 people there.  It’s like any other business.  You don’t necessarily know how many customers you’re going to have at any given time but that would be the capacity.

Mr. John Klarl asked but the census they seek is 92.  That would be the census?  The census would be 92?

Mr. Bob Davis responded that would be the maximum.  There were provisions on some of the early Special Permits and even I think as proposed on that last hospital Special Permit where they put a limitation on the total number of employees and patients if you will at the site which I think was a total of 225.  That related to the original IBM Special Permit and I think it was picked up as a condition of the hospital Special Permit I mentioned in 1989.  We would be far under that.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the staff support would be what number then, aside from the patients?

Mr. Bob Davis responded the total number of staff members, but they would be spread over three shifts would be 92 full time employees, but again, we wouldn’t expect that in the startup phase and as I was just eluding to, if you added the maximum staff at ultimately assume the maximum bed count you’d have 184 where as the last hospital Special Permit provided for 225.

Mr. Robert Foley asked that would be over three shifts in-and-out leaving, coming back…
Mr. Bob Davis responded over three shifts yes and we would make those off peak from the normal commuter hours.  Many of those we would expect too would come there other than by separate vehicles.  We would be able to provide shuttles from the train and that type of thing. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you expect that the patients will leave the hospital and then – other than to go home I mean…

Mr. Bob Davis responded no, I think Mr. Klarl asked that.  No they would not leave the hospital.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any other questions, concerns?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated maybe for the benefit of the public we could describe the process from here so everybody knows where this application will go.  Today it will be referred to our staff who will do a comprehensive review of the application.  They’ll produce some comments and questions that need to be answered by the applicant, will likely prepare some kind of a plan, Site Development Plan or something of that nature that will be reviewed again by staff and by us.  Eventually, when all of that is put in order it’ll get put up for a public hearing.  Is that correct to say?  Did I leave anything out?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded and prior to the public hearing there would be a site inspection similar to…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s a long process but it’s a detailed and a very good process to make sure that everything is lined up.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and also during the process, it’s within the Town of Cortlandt, Croton, Ossining, they become interested…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they would all receive referrals, a county-required referral.  It will also be referred to the County Planning Department.  It will be referred to a whole variety of agencies and one thing is, I’m not going to finish the review memo in time for this applicant to respond to it for him to be back on the September 1st agenda.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we understand that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so this application will not be on the September 1st agenda but I’m Chris Kehoe: 734-1080, I’m the planner and this is Mike from the Engineering Department, Mike Preziosi 734-1060.  Always keep in touch with our offices.  Pretty soon it’ll be on almost every agenda but it’s not going to be on the September agenda.

Mr. John Klarl stated the public can go on line.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated all of our agendas are posted on line approximately a week before the meeting.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated which is always the first Tuesday of the month.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated not always but 90% of the time.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated not the June meeting, except when there’s a holiday.

Mr. Bob Davis stated thank you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we would call that a point of information I guess if you want to say something…

Ms. Karen Wells stated thank you.  I realize that this is not a public hearing but obviously a lot of people have come out.  A lot of us have been waiting for this.  I’m sorry, my name is Karen Wells, 28 Applebee Farm Road representing the concerned citizens for Responsible Hudson Institute Site Development.  I have the information we’ve been handing out, out back.  Do you mind if I give you what people…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded give it to me.  I’ll make sure they get it.

Ms. Karen Wells stated just a few comments here: we are the residents who will be impacted by this proposed plan and until recently this was an abandoned site and that’s an important aspect to consider because the applicant is claiming that there’s an existing hospital and they’re claiming rights from a Planning Board process.  I think one of the first steps that has to happen is to determine if there is an existing hospital.  When you go on the site you will see no hospital.  In fact, the applicant has put in plenty of evidence themselves.  They have put pictures of abandoned buildings, they have evicted squatters.  The other concern we have in the immediate process you did discuss whether or not there are proper permits for the work done.  We respectfully request that if those permits are not proper, that you stop the application process until they can be filed and closed as necessary.  Looking at the 92 bed facility, just looking at the PR package that the applicant has put forth raises significant concerns such that we hope that a full Environmental Impact Study will be requested on this project, specific criteria include triggers such large amounts of water the applicant is going to be drawing from wells on the property in an area where we all depend on well water.  The applicant will also be processing that waste water in septic fields, septic fields that exist in a very sensitive watershed and close to wetlands on the property.  There is another criteria that is often forgotten in the Planning Board and Zoning process, that Special Permits must also consider the character of the neighborhood.  This is a very rural part of our community.  It is a 2-acre zoning.  One of the graphics you’ll see from the outline is assuming maximum 10 homes on this 20-acre lot would result using census data for Westchester County number of people in a household: 27 people.  They are talking, at a minimum, of a 184 people.  That does not include visitors that they expect, does not include deliveries, private waste removal, including weekly.  They have mentioned in their application 5 tons of waste that will need to be removed on a weekly basis.  Obviously these are clear triggers for a full Environmental Impact Study.  The other concern we have is that the parcel that is owned in New Castle may end up being a back door to extending the facility through an application to the town of New Castle.  This is particularly important because this facility is less than 5 minutes away from another specialty hospital that has put in an application for an expansion that is one in a half times the average Wal-Mart in putting that in the same residential neighborhood, although, in a separate municipality.  It is crucial that the towns work together.  At this point, we’re talking about applications to Ossining, New Castle and the Town of Cortlandt that will all affect this area.  As part of our concern about this, we have submitted a request to the County for a regional traffic study.  We understand it is very difficult for any one town to tackle the traffic that’s going to be coming from multiple Special Permits.  We have copies of that request and I’ll provide that to staff as well.  The other component that is very disturbing is the number of Special Permits that are being considered for this small part of the community and you have to ask yourself the question: when is a Special Permit no longer special and when have we literally rezoned from R-80 residential to a specialty hospital zone?  I know from attending some of the Master Plan discussions that there is discussion of having a medical-oriented district.  That is where this type of project belongs not in a residential neighborhood.  Thank you very much.
Members of the audience applauded.

Mr. Bob Davis stated just briefly Madame Chair, because as you know this is not a public hearing.  I just want to comment on the first statement that was made that we’re claiming there’s an existing hospital there: we’re doing no such thing, nothing that we’ve provided to you claims that.  We’ve not submitted PR material.  We’ve submitted you material as you would normally expect from our professional consultants and we’re well aware of the zoning laws and the laws of Special Permits and so forth but we’re not making any claim that there’s an existing hospital that’s why we’re applying for a Permit.  Thank you.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
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*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair it’s 9:54, I move that we adjourn.
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Next Meeting: TUESDAY, September 1, 2015
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[image: image1.jpg]



X 

SYLVIE MADDALENA

Dated: October 9, 2015
49



